
Board of Directors Meeting 
501 Comfort Place, Conference Room A, Mishawaka 

February 19, 2020 
7:15 a.m. 

BOARD BRIEFING BOOK 
Table of Contents 

Agenda .......................................................................................................... 2 

Consent Agenda ............................................................................................ 4 

• Minutes of 11/20/19 ........................................................................... 5 

• Patient Care Policy ............................................................................. 12 

President’s Report ......................................................................................... 14 

• Average Daily Census Charts ............................................................ 33 

• Monthly Dashboard Summary ........................................................... 39 

• Volunteer Newsletters December 2019-February 2020 ..................... 40 

• Committees of the Board of Directors ............................................... 58 

• Conflict of Interest Policy .................................................................. 59 

• 2019 CHC Goals ................................................................................ 62 

• 2020 CHC Goals ................................................................................ 67 

• Attachments to President’s Report ..................................................... 71 

PAGE - 1



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 
ONE 

 
AGENDA 

PAGE - 2



                                                
 

 
1-800-HOSPICE      ⧫       cfhcare.org 

 

111 Sunnybrook Court 
South Bend, IN 46637 
(574) 243-3100 
Fax: (574) 243-3134 

112 S. Center St., Suite C 
Plymouth, IN 46563 
(574) 935-4511 
Fax: (574) 935-4589 

22579 Old US 20 East 
Elkhart, IN 46516 
(574) 264-3321 
Fax: (574) 264-5892 

286 W Johnson Rd, Ste. B 
La Porte, IN 46350 
(219) 575-7930 
Fax: (219) 476-3965 

Administration & Foundation 
Life Transition Center 
501 Comfort Place 
Mishawaka, IN 46545 
(574) 277-4100 
Fax: (574) 822-4876 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Administrative and Foundation Offices 

501 Comfort Place, Room A, Mishawaka IN 
February 19, 2020 

7:15 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Welcome and Board Member Introductions – Mary Newbold (7 Minutes) 
 
2. Consent Agenda – Mary Newbold (8 minutes) 

A. Approval of November 20, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes (action) 
B. Patient Care Policies (action) – Included in your board packet. Sue Morgan available to 

answer questions. 
 
3. President's Report (information) - Mark Murray (10 minutes) 
 
4. Finance Committee (action) – Tricia Luck (15 minutes) 

A. December 2019 Year End Pre-Audited Financial Statements 
 
5. Hospice Foundation Update (information) – Wendell Walsh (15 minutes) 
 
6. Board Education (information) – “2019: The Year in Review” – Mark Murray (15 Minutes) 
 
7. Chair’s Report – Mary Newbold (5 minutes) 

 
 

 
Next meeting May 20, 2020 

 
# # # 

PAGE - 3



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 
TWO 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 

PAGE - 4



Center for Hospice Care  
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

November 20, 2019 
 
Members Present: Andy Murray, Carol Walker Jennifer Ewing, Jennifer Houin, Mark Wobbe, Mary Newbold, Suzie Weirick, 

Tim Portolese, Tricia Luck, Wendell Walsh 
Absent: Amy Kuhar Mauro, Ann Firth, Jesse Hsieh 
Guest: Roland Chamblee, Jr. 
CHC Staff: Mark Murray, Craig Harrell, Dave Haley, Karl Holderman, Mike Wargo, Sue Morgan, Becky Kizer 
 
Topic Discussion Action 
1. Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 7:15 a.m.  
2. Raclin 

Dedication 
 The ribbon cutting and dedication of the Ernestine M. Raclin House was held last 

evening. We had 185 RSVPs plus additional people attend. This could be the largest 
event like this held on our campus. The project was ten years in the making. Mayor 
Dave Wood spoke about gratitude on behalf of the City of Mishawaka, and that this 
development helped spur things on in this city. We had good media coverage too.   

 

3. Minutes  A motion was made to accept the minutes of the 08/21/18 meeting as presented. The 
motion was accepted unanimously. 

W. Walsh motioned 
T. Luck seconded 

4. Policies  The revised hospice and home health policies were reviewed. The revisions reflect 
changes in regulations and practices. Complementary Alternative Medicine (CAM) 
is defined as a certified massage therapist. We do not do aromatherapy due to open 
flames. The IPUs are the first choice for respite care. If the units are full, then we 
will use contracted area hospitals or nursing homes. The plan of care is the care plan 
by each discipline. The plan of treatment is written at the time of the initial nursing 
assessment and is sent to the physician responsible for the patient’s medical care for 
his/her signature. These are two different things.  

 A motion was made to accept the revised policies as presented. The motion was 
accepted unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W. Walsh motioned 
T. Luck seconded 

5. QI Committee  Carol W. reported on the QI Committee meetings from 09/17/19 and 11/19/19. The 
committee approved a new QAPI related to pediatric care. We have seen an increase 
in pediatric admissions. NHPCO’s report from 2017 shows the national average of 

 

PAGE - 5



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 11/20/19, page 2 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
revocations was 6.5% and CHC YTD 2019 through September was 7.5%. We 
focused a lot on patient/family education. Our HeartWize and BreatheEazy 
programs are well supported and we’ve had great outcomes to help keep those 
revocations down. CHC’s live discharges through September 2019 were 12.3% 
compared to the national average of 17.1% in 2017.  

 Some of the follow up from the ISDH survey was in relation to social work and 
chaplain assessment within five days of admission. We are now at 99% compliance. 
We are also working on medication reconciliation in the IPUs, and the last three 
chart audits had 100% compliance. One month was 71% related to a specific 
employee and we have worked with her on this. We are also focusing on wounds. If 
a patient is actively dying, it is difficult to manage wounds, because the patient’s 
systems are shutting down and their food intake is down. Wound care compliance in 
May was 68% and in October was 95%.  

6. President’s 
Report 

 ADC continues to be at all-time record highs in the history of the organization. 
Through 11/19 the ADC was 426, and YTD through October 419, a 6% increase. 
The breakeven ADC for budget is 383.Referrals are up 2.2%. The census in ECFs 
continues to recover dramatically. October ECF ADC was 154 and YTD 141 
compared to 129 in January. We are doing several veteran events at facilities and 
also our Partners in Care program. One thing we noticed last year when we visited 
facilities was the lack of communication. Our staff was not letting them know when 
they were in the building. We created Partners in Care to bring our staff assigned to 
that facility to interact with their staff and build those relationships.  

 Staffing – Dr. Karissa Misner is now here, and we have some potential new doctors 
in the pipeline. Dr. Nicole Sharilla from OSU medical center is considering joining 
us in six months when she completes her Master’s Degree in ethics. Dr. Tom 
Browne is a family practitioner in Knox who is considering transitioning to hospice. 
We will be interviewing him next week. We have four full-time nurse practitioners. 
One left in June to go to Indianapolis and then decided to return. Our CMO Dr. 
Gifford is retiring at the end of the year. A contracted medical director who worked 
up to 24 hours/week retired, so we are still understaffed with doctors. So we may see 
an increase in Receivables again due to outstanding certs/recerts.  

 Congratulations to Dave Haley in renewing our Optum contract for five years with 
no price increase. That includes DeliverCareRx. The price of drugs may go up or 

 

PAGE - 6



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 11/20/19, page 3 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
down, but the fee to deliver them will not increase. 

 The new La Porte office is now operational. South Bend staff moved to Mishawaka 
in October.  

 We finally had our home health survey. It is supposed to happen every three years 
and our last one was in 2015. The only problem found was we didn’t have copies of 
pre-employment drug tests in the HR files. Apparently the state law changed a few 
years ago, but we didn’t know it. We offered to print them and put them in the files, 
but the surveyor didn’t want to wait. Our plan of correction was accepted by ISDH.  

 A few weeks ago at Cerner’s national conference they announced that they will stop 
supporting HomeWorks and RoadNotes, our electronic medical record we have had 
in place since November of 2010, as of 12/31/20. So we are in the process of 
looking for a new EMR. Cerner is recommending Brightree and they will do a demo 
with us. We will interview some other vendors too.  

 The reception for the Vera Z. Dwyer Fellow at the IU School of Medicine is 
tomorrow evening at Notre Dame.  

 CHC staff presented at two sessions at the NHPCO clinical conference recently in 
Orlando, FL. Sue M. was a presenter on HeartWize and BreatheEazy, and Kathy 
Kloss, Clinical Staff Educator, did a session on our ELNEC program. We are 
submitting presentations for the April NHPCO conference to be held in Washington, 
DC.  

 The OIG report came out this summer that was negative towards hospice care. 
Legislature followed up on that with a Senate bill that would require state deficiency 
reports be posted on the Hospice Compare Website. If the bill goes through, it 
probably won’t happen until 2021. We are discussing going to Indianapolis to go 
through the informal dispute process on the condition level deficiency we received 
on the complaint survey. We are still discussing this. 

 CHC, the Hospice Foundation, and GPIC combined have assets over $66M. We met 
with 1st Source Bank to discuss whether to continue with our line of credit, and 
arbitrage the difference between what we’re receiving in investments and what 
we’re paying in interest on the line, and we decided we would. We are a major 
business in the Michiana area, and 1st Source said they have very few clients in 
Michiana that are larger than us.   

7. Finance  The Finance Committee met Friday and went over three action items.   

PAGE - 7



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 11/20/19, page 4 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
Committee  Flex Spending Account limit – Every year CHC offers this benefit to staff. The limit 

has to be set every year, and $2,000 seems to work well for us. A motion was made 
to set the Flex Spending Account limit at $2,000 for 2020. The motion was accepted 
unanimously. 

 YTD October 31, 2019 financial statements – YTD we have served 1,785 patients, a 
slight increase from a year ago. It is slightly under budget. ADC was 395 year ago, 
and we budgeted 400. YTD through October the ADC is 419. YTD operating 
revenue YTD $19.2M, total revenue $22.3M, total expenses $17.2M, net gain 
$5.1M, net without beneficial interest $2.3M. A motion was made to accept the 
YTD October 31, 2019 financial statements as presented. The motion was accepted 
unanimously.   

 2020 Budget – We look at the current ADC and project it out for the rest of the year. 
We are projecting the ADC going into 2020 will be 425 and that we will serve 2,152 
patients. Operating revenue $24.5M, and total revenue $25.6M. One challenge when 
we brought the South Bend staff to Mishawaka was the internal distribution and 
reallocation of expenses. We are projecting total expenses in 2020 of $23.8M, net 
gain $1.8M, net without beneficial interest $1.1M. We budgeted money for the new 
electronic medical record. This will be one of the significant changes going forward. 
In 2010 it was a capital expenditure when we purchased Cerner software—we had a 
$600,000 outlay. Going forward it will be a cloud based product, so instead of a 
onetime large capital outlay, we will probably be looking at an enhanced support 
subscription program. We do have money in the budget for equipment. We budgeted 
$405,000, which may be a little aggressive.. We are projecting a 1.5% increase for 
2020. We will also be opening a new IPU, which usually leads to a spike in 
residential home care census. The census in La Porte and Porter Counties is 
relatively untapped. A motion was made to accept the 2020 budget as presented. The 
motion was accepted unanimously.  

 
W. Walsh motioned 
S. Weirick seconded 
 
 
 
 
T. Portolese motioned 
J. Ewing seconded 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M. Newbold motioned 
J. Houin seconded 

8. Hospice 
Foundation 
Update 

 The total for the Capital Campaign continues to rise even though the campaign has 
been technically over since June 30th. We have five open prospects in the pipeline 
and three more are pending. To date we have raised $13.5M for a $10M campaign. 
What has also helped is we are very close to being able to match the Vera Z. Dwyer 
$1M challenge grant. We have an outstanding ask for that part and someone has said 
if we don’t get it, we could use their gift towards the match. Once that is done, we 

 

PAGE - 8



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 11/20/19, page 5 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
will receive a $1M check from the Dwyer Trust that will go towards an endowment.  

 A couple of estate bequests came in since the last board meeting for a total of over 
$563,000. The St. Joe Valley Street Rods raised $11,500 this year selling coupons 
for Barnaby’s pizza. Over the years this group has donated $125,450. We will have 
a naming opportunity for them on our campus.  

 Education – We are working in a lot of different areas. See the President’s Report 
for more details. We are doing grief and advance care planning, community 
education, and collaborating with St. Joseph Health System to do a series of 
webinars. We are making an effort to keep our name out there in the community.  

 International – Staff participated in the PCAU biennial conference September 5-6. 
This year Annette Deguch and Kristiana Donahue did presentations, and then 
shadowed PCAU staff the following week. At the conference gala we were 
presented with an award from the Ugandan Minister of Health. We had an 
opportunity to visit the Mulago School of Nursing and Midwifery. When we did 
scholarships with Hospice Africa Uganda, we could only sponsor eight students at a 
time. Now we can sponsor 30 because the government has taken over the training 
program. 27 students are currently in training. GPIC has 40 U.S. partners with 40 
organizations in 13 different countries, and have four new U.S. prospects. Staff 
attended the APCA conference in September. We did a one day workshop on 
international partnerships. Three or four members of the GPIC advisory council also 
attended. We are working on research projects with the University of Alberta, the 
University of Kansas Medical Center, and Notre Dame.   

 The clinical staff building is now occupied. We held a series of orientation with staff 
about the Mishawaka campus building and grounds. The move went very smoothly. 

 The Raclin House dedication was last night. DJ Construction and Office Interiors 
did a lot of work over the past few days to get the building ready for the ceremony. 
There are still some behind the scenes things that need to be done. We are working 
hard to get everything done shortly after the first of the year. Then we’ll turn our 
attention to the Roseland facility and developing it for Milton Adult Day Services. .  

 Tim P. reported he is working on an initiative to fund an endowment for the IPU’s 
dog. An area was built for a service dog at Raclin House. He is estimating $50,000 
to purchase, train, and set up an endowment for food and health care for the dog. He 
has raised $5,000 already. Of all of the National Hospice Executive Roundtable  

PAGE - 9



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 11/20/19, page 6 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
members that have IPUs, and they all do, we are the only one that doesn’t have a 
service / therapy dog.  

9. Nominations  The new CHC Board candidates are Roland Chamblee and Kurt Janowsky. Their 
bios are in the board packet. A motion was made to accept the nomination of the two 
new CHC Board members as presented. The motion was accepted unanimously.  

 The 2020 CHC Board officers will be: Chair – Mary Newbold, Vice Chair – 
Jennifer Ewing, Treasurer – Tricia Luck, Secretary – Jennifer Houin, Immediate 
Past Chair – Wendell Walsh, Hospice Foundation Immediate Past Chair – Amy 
Kuhar Mauro. A motion was made to accept the Board officers as presented. The 
motion was accepted unanimously.  

J. Ewing motioned 
J. Houin seconded 
 
 
 
T. Portolese motioned 
M. Wobbe seconded 

10. Board Education  Milton Adult Day Services – A presentation was done on the future plans for Milton 
Adult Day Services in Roseland and Care Connections at Milton Village, the 
fundraising already received, what additional funds will be needed, and the 
collaboration between CHC, the Hospice Foundation, Alzheimer’s & Dementia 
Services of Northern Indiana (ADSNI), and REAL Services. We have been involved 
with MADS since 2016. We met with people from Vivium Group, a consulting firm 
from the Netherlands, to discuss how to translate their residential model to a day 
care model. Currently REAL Services leases a building on Colfax, and the tenants 
include Milton ADS, Care Connections, ADSNI, and the Institute for Excellence in 
Memory Care. After the transition, tenants would be leasing space from us. The 
architects from Helman-Sechrist attended the Vivium planning meetings. They are 
very enthusiastic about the project. REAL Services received a $750,000 grant from 
the Community Foundation of St. Joseph County to jump start the project. We used 
some of that money to bring Vivium here. They also received a $500,000 grant and 
will receive that money at the tail end of the project. We are estimating a cost of 
$3.5-$5M. One foundation said when we get to $2.7M, they would give us the 
remaining $500,000. That would leave a gap of about $2M, so we are having 
conversations with a number of different foundations and individuals. We have 
$500,000 asks out to two foundations, and are in the process of working on some 
$250,000 grants. Milton’s census is now around 20, and we are targeting 50 for the 
new building. The History Museum will be one of the partners and also the St. 
Joseph Library. 

 

11. Chairman’s  The list of Board committees is in the packet. If anyone would like to serve on a  

PAGE - 10



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 11/20/19, page 7 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
Report committee, let Mark M. or Mary N. know.  

 Board members recognition – Tim P. and Carol W. finished serving their second 
terms. Carol W. has agreed to continue on the QI Committee.  

 Board meeting frequency – Mary N. was approached by some board members about 
moving the number of meetings back to six a year instead of four. This organization 
run so smoothly that board involvement is not as needed as much as some boards. 
Maybe we could go to five meetings a year. Board attendance has been higher since 
we went to four meetings. Four meetings lacks the engagement, which is why 
serving on a committee is extremely important. Reach out to Mary N. of your area 
of expertise or what you want to learn more about. It was decided to keep the 
meetings at 7:15 a.m. New board member orientation is held in January, and the first 
board meeting is in February so we can do the year in review. The Board would like 
to keep the last meeting of the year in November instead of December.  

 A motion was made to have the Executive Committee set the number of board 
meetings. The motion was accepted unanimously. They will meet in early January 
and make a decision.  

 In the board packet is the list of 2020 Hospice Foundation Events and PCAU ten 
year report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W. Walsh motioned 
S. Weirick seconded 

Adjournment  The meeting adjourned at 8:45 a.m. Next meeting 02/19 
 
Prepared by Becky Kizer for approval by the Board of Directors on 02/19/20.  
 
 
______________________________________________           _____________________________________________ 
Jennifer Houin, Secretary      Becky Kizer, Recording Secretary 
 

PAGE - 11



PAGE - 12



PAGE - 13



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 
THREE 

 
PRESIDENT’S 

REPORT 

PAGE - 14



 
 

Center for Hospice Care 
President / CEO Report 

February 19, 2020 
(Report posted to Secure Board Website on February 11, 2020) 

 
This meeting takes place in Conference Room A at the Mishawaka Campus at 7:15 AM.  This 
report includes event information from November 21, 2019 – February 18, 2020.  The Hospice 
Foundation and GPIC Board meetings follow immediately in Conference Room C. 
 
 
CENSUS 
 
Average daily census (ADC) ended 2019 at record levels for the year.  ADC was 420 for the 
calendar year.  This has remarkably continued into 2020, which is very unusual at the beginning of 
a calendar year.  January ADC was 431, another all-time agency record.  Through February 18, 
ADC is 445.  Year-to-date on 2/18/2020 was 435.  Both inpatient units have recently been very 
busy, but census in each unit has been choppy.  On 2/10/2020, we had 17 patients in a total of 14 
beds at the two Inpatient Units (IPU).  However, the census changes rapidly and we may have many 
empty beds the next day or within 24 hours.  The January 2020 number of IPU patients in South 
Bend is even with 2019 while the Elkhart IPU is up 57%.  There is no explanation.  Historically, we 
usually begin each year slowly and build up throughout the year, frequently peaking in early fall.  
Again, this census is very unusual for this time of year. 
 

January 2020 
 

Current 
Month 

Year to Date Prior 
Year to Date 

Percent 
Change 

     
Patients Served 599 599 511 17.22% 
Original Admissions 180 180 142 26.76% 
ADC Hospice 396.58 396.58 350.00 13.31% 
ADC Home Health 34.84 34.84 27.68 25.87% 
ADC CHC Total 431.42 431.42 377.68 14.23% 

 
CHC HOSPICE INPATIENT UNITS 
 

January 2020 Current 
Month 

Year to Date Prior 
Year to Date 

Percent 
Change 

SB House Pts Served 40 40 40 0.00% 
SB House ALOS 3.10 3.10 4.23 -26.71% 
SB House Occupancy 57.14% 57.14% 77.88% -26.63% 
     
Elk House Pts Served 36 36 23 55.52% 
Elk House ALOS 3.44 3.44 3.65 -5.75% 
Elk House Occupancy 57.14% 57.14% 38.71% 47.61% 

 
 

PAGE - 15



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 2 

2 
 

 
MONTHLY AVERAGE DAILY CENSUS BY OFFICE AND INPATIENT UNITS 
 
 2020 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 
 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec  
 
S.B.: 220    221 228 234 231 224 230 230 225 
 
Ply: 70    74 76 67 66 69 68 65 71 
 
Elk: 120    101 105 105 107 111 111 107 114 
 
Lap: 14    24 23 21 15 13 12 13 12 
 
SBH: 4    4 5 6 6 5 4 6 5 
 
EKH: 4    4 4 6 4 3 3 4 4 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Total: 431    428 441 439 429 425 428 424 432 
 
 
PATIENTS IN FACILITIES 
 
Of the 599 patients served in January 2020, 171 resided in facilities.  The average daily census of 
patients served in nursing homes, assisted living facilities and group homes in January 2020 was 
142 compared to 129 in January 2019. 
 
 
FINANCES 
 
Karl Holderman, CFO, reports the year-to-date December DRAFT 2019 Financials will be posted to 
the Board website on Friday morning, February 14th following Finance Committee approval.  For 
informational purposes, we are pleased to present the unapproved November 2019 year-end 
financials on the next page.  As always, we will only be covering the year-end 2019 Financials at 
this February meeting.  January – April 2020 financials along with the 2019 audited financial 
statements will be presented at the May 2020 CHC board meeting. 
 
On 11/30/19, at the HF, intermediate investments totaled $4,788,197.  Long term investments 
totaled $21,849,506.  The combined total assets of all organizations, including GPIC, on September 
30, 2019 totaled $66,823,744, an increase of $13,159,391 or an increase of 25%, from November 
2019.  Year-to-date investments as of 11/30/19 showed a gain of $3,602,273. 
 
From a year-to-date budget standpoint at 11/30/19, CHC alone was over budget on operating 
revenue by $646,893, over budget on total revenue by $3,143,242, and under budget on operating 
expenses by $1,089,344. 
 
 
 

PAGE - 16



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 3 

3 
 

Year to Date November 2019 Financials 
 
November 2019

Year to Date Summary
Center for

Hospice Care

Hospice

Foundation GPIC Combined

CHC Operating Income 21,097,463 21,097,463

MADS Revenue 331,848 331,848

Development Income 2,205,071 2,205,071

Partnership Grants 464,414 464,414

Investment Income (Net) 3,602,273 3,602,273

Interest & Other 27,735 60,298 34,525 122,558

Beneficial Interest in Affiliate 3,125,009 (4,526)

Total Revenue 24,582,055 5,863,116 498,940 27,823,628

Total Expenses 19,069,922 2,738,107 503,466 22,311,495

Net Gain 5,512,133 3,125,009 (4,526) 5,512,133

Net w/o Beneficial Interest 2,387,124 3,129,535

Net w/o Investments 1,909,860  
 
 
 
CHC VP/COO UPDATE 
 
Dave Haley, CHC VP/COO, reports… 
 
With the retirement of Gregory Gifford, MD, JD, on December 31, 2019, Karissa Misner, D.O., 
M.P.T., who joined our medical staff on August 19, 2019 has been appointed to the position of 
Medical Director.  Dr. Misner is Board Certified in Rehabilitative Medicine and is Board Eligible in 
Hospice and Palliative Medicine.  Before Dr. Gifford retired, he devoted himself full-time to 
completing hospice Medicare certifications and recertifications.  Unbilled receivables in July of 
2019 were $4.3 million.  As of December 31, unbilled receivables were down to about $140,000. 
 
We currently have an opening for two full-time physicians to assist with the growth in the level of 
patients we are experiencing.  Dr. Misner and Dave will be attending the annual meeting of the 
American Association of Hospice and Palliative Medicine from April 18 to 21.  The purpose will be 
to recruit another physician and to introduce Dr. Misner to Molly Feely, MD, the Hospice and 
Palliative Medicine Fellowship Program Director at the Mayo Clinic. 
 

PAGE - 17



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 4 

4 
 

Amanda Schmidt, MD, a Family Practice physician in Goshen, Indiana will be visiting our 
Mishawaka campus on February 13.  She will be attending the Indiana University School of 
Medicine Hospice and Palliative Medicine Fellowship Program in Indianapolis beginning in July 
2020.  She will be named the new Vera Z. Dwyer Fellow in Hospice and Palliative Medicine for 
2020-2021. 
 
John Mulder, MD, FAAHPM, HMDC, the Hospice and Palliative Medicine Fellowship Program 
Director at Holland Home Hospice in Grand Rapids, Michigan, will be visiting our campus on 
February 17.  We will be discussing a possible affiliation between our organizations for the training 
of Hospice and Palliative Medicine Fellows. 
 
For the four-year period from 2016 to 2019 we had 1,228 patients in our HeartWize program for 
congestive heart failure.  99% of these patients did not go to an Emergency Room.  98% were not 
admitted to a hospital.  For the same time period we had 964 patients in our BreatheEazy program 
for chronic obstructive pulmonary disease.  99% did not go to an Emergency Room.  97% were not 
admitted to a hospital.  These high numbers speak to our ability to keep patients out of the hospital 
through the high-quality patient care we provide. 
 
There were 1,495 total deaths in 2019.  This averages out to 4.1 deaths every day or one death every 
six hours on average.  There were also three patient suicides during 2019.  Our annual Bereavement 
Services held on November 24 had 508 attendees.  They were held at the Kroc Center in South 
Bend, Trinity Church on Jackson in Elkhart, and at Christos in Plymouth.   
 
There were 132 total Hospital referred deaths before admission (DBAs) in 2019 resulting from 
1,088 total Hospital referrals.  This resulted in 1 out of every eight Hospital referrals being a DBA.  
This amounts to 13%’ which is 1 every 2.8 days.  The highest months were February, December, 
and March (47%).  The most frequent day of the week for a DBA was Friday (21%). 
 
 
DIRECTOR OF NURSING UPDATE 
 
Sue Morgan, DON, reports… 
 
Sue Morgan RN Director of Nursing and Kathy Kloss RN Clinical Educator presented at the 
NHPCO Clinical Conference on November 5 and 6, 2019.  Two concurrent presentations were 
presented: “How to Develop an ELNEC (End of Life Nursing Consortium) Program for your 
Clinical Staff” and “QAPI Success—End Stage Cardiopulmonary Program.”  The evaluations from 
the programs were all rated at a good to excellent level.  
 
The following Education Programs were held since our last board meeting: 
  
• Annual Nursing Skills Competency Fair: which included skill sets related to Infusions, 

Wounds, Pacemakers and TB certification for all nurses. The program is required on an 
annual basis and there was 100% attendance. 

• Cardiac and Pulmonary Boot Camp: which is an eight-hour program for all nurses to review 
the Breatheazy and Heartwize Programs.  

• Activity Levels for Patients during an Emergency: this was an independent learning packet 
to review levels of care required for patients in their home during an emergency or disaster. 

PAGE - 18



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 5 

5 
 

• Education Corner: A newsletter is published weekly for all nursing personnel with current 
updates related to clinical care of the patient and their families. 

 
• Certification in Hospice and Palliative Nursing (CHPN): During this quarter three RN’s and 

one CNA received their Certification in Hospice and Palliative Nursing. This is an 
examination which confirms their knowledge base to care for terminally ill patients. 
Presently there are 12 RN’s certified and 3 CNA’s. In March 2020, 7 RN’s are scheduled to 
take the exam for certification. This certificate is awarded by the Advanced Expert Care by 
the Hospice & Palliative Nurses Credentialing Center. 

 
On January 23, The Indiana State Department of Health completed our Retail Food Establishment 
Inspection at the South Bend Inpatient Unit.  There were no deficiencies or non-compliance noted 
in this unannounced survey. CHC is in full compliance. 
 
The Raclin House inpatient unit is currently in the process of organizing supplies and the 
medication room.  Education and competencies related to the building, new hospital beds, 
emergency preparedness, and safety is occurring for all staff in preparation of the Raclin House 
opening to care for patients. 
 
Since June of 2019 we have been collaborating with McKesson, our contracted company for our 
medical supplies.  We have coordinated with McKesson to standardize and decrease our inventory. 
Since the implementation of reviewing the inventory and usage levels we have had a significant 
decrease from 400 items to 250 items.  Comparing the 3rd Quarter to the 4th quarter we have a 
spending variance decrease of -26%.  During 2020 we will develop a formulary and electronic 
scanners for ordering to further decrease the inventory and cost. 
 
 
HOSPICE FOUNDATION VP / COO UPDATE 
 
Mike Wargo, VP/COO, for our two separate 501(c)3 organization, Hospice Foundation (HF), and 
Global Partners in Care (GPIC) presents this update for informational purposes to the CHC Board… 
 

Fund Raising Comparative Summary 
 
Through December 2019, the Development Department recorded the following calendar year cash 
gifts as compared with the same period during the previous four years:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE - 19



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 6 

6 
 

Year to Date Total Revenue (Cumulative) 
 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 

January 65,460.71 46,552.99 37,015.96 62,707.48 

February 101,643.17 199,939.17 93,912.90 113,771.80 

March 178,212.01 282,326.61 220,485.17 369,862.26 

April 341,637.10 431,871.55 310,093.61 565,568.94 

May 579,888.08 574,854.27 505,075.65 663,483.70 

June 710,175.32 1,066,118.11 633,102.69 850,496.19  

July 1,072,579.84 1,277,609.56 767,397.15 918,451.53 

August 1,205,050.76 1,346,219.26 868,232.25 1,018,532.22 

September 1,297.009.78 1,466,460.27 994,301.35 1,122,498.94 

October 1,421,110.26 1,593,668.39 1,074,820.86 1,778,379.29 

November 1,494,702.09 2,443,869.12 1,173,928.93 1,841,457.95 

December 2,018,630.54 2,730,551.86 1,635,368.33   2,946,889.74  

   
 
 
 

Year-to-Date Monthly Revenue 
(less major campaigns, bequests and significant one-time major gifts) 

 

 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

January 57,971.60 52,156.98 31,552.99 37,015.96 51,082.36 

February 67,572.77 36,182.46 35,125.58 56,896.94 45,621.02 

March 107,457.07 73,667.84 79,387.44 113,969.42 254,547.16 

April 162,146.87 163,425.09 149,569.94 87,978.18 194,857.93 

May 160,178.34 93,318.98 142,982.72 182,601.92 97,864.76 

June 159,776.36 127,315.24 146,200.17 46,947.92 69,026.39 

July 93,586.27 52,394.52 61,505.45 64,243.53 67,591.20 

August 86,606.54 97,470.92 63,593.03 61,803.98 54,739.37 

September 99,931.45 92,459.02 120,261.01 117,984.73 68,812.68 

October 53,693.27 71,323.54 127,208.12 79,852.69 50,019.27 

November 46,870.62 66,490.16 75,809.56 94,053.07 57,214.65 

December 161,519.80 138,328.11 286,687.74 191,211.72 225,547.36 

Total 1,257,310.96 1,064,532.86 1,319,883.75 1,134,560.06 1,236,924.15 

  
 
 
Cornerstones for Living: The Crossroads Campaign 
 
The Crossroads Campaign ended chronologically on June 30, 2019.  We continue to work on 
closing large gifts from a few select donors, who have indicated that they intend to participate.  
Since our last report, the addition of campaign gifts solicited prior to 6/30/19 and received since 
that date resulted in a new campaign total of $14,080,165.  
 
 
 

PAGE - 20



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 7 

7 
 

Planned Giving 
 
Estate gifts since the last report totaled $3,000. We continue to field requests from financial 
advisors and attorneys about planned giving options and bequests from their clients.  
 
Annual Giving 
 
Response to our 2019 annual appeal mailing, sent out in late November 2019 continues to be 
positive with gifts totaling $87,309.68 through 12/31/19. 
 
Special Events & Projects 
 
We welcomed Dr. Collin Bowman as the most recent Vera Z. Dwyer Fellow in Hospice and 
Palliative Medicine at a reception on November 21 in Raclin-Carmichael Hall at the IU School of 
Medicine-South Bend.  
 
CHC benefitted from the Mishawaka Police Department’s first No Shave November fundraiser.  
Sixty-four Mishawaka police officers, the Veterans Affairs Police Department and private 
donations resulted in a donation of $3,062 to CHC.  Representatives of the police department 
visited CHC on December 4 to make a check presentation.  
 
A dedication ceremony, open houses and tours of the Ernestine M. Raclin House began in 
November.  The facility was dedicated at an event that took place on November 19, 2019.  Ernie 
Raclin attended, toured the facility and shared some comments at the event.  We estimate that more 
than 150 people attended and toured the Raclin House dedication.  Two subsequent open houses 
took place on December 10 and 17.  We partnered with the South Bend Regional Chamber of 
Commerce to host the December 10 event, which was open to the general public.  On December 17, 
the Raclin House was open to all staff members and volunteers from all CHC offices to tour. 
 
We were fortunate to benefit from two holiday related fundraisers in December.  The first Claus 
and Cookies event took place on December 21 at Pella Windows and Doors Pella Experience 
Center located at Indian Ridge Plaza in Mishawaka.  Those participating in the event had an 
opportunity to decorate cookies and visit with Santa.  While there was no charge, donations to CHC 
were accepted.  Wellfield Botanic Gardens selected CHC/HF to decorate a giving tree to be 
displayed as part of its annual Winter Wonderland Holiday Lights Giving Tree project.  The 
bereavement staff decorated a Camp Evergreen themed tree.  As a participant in the project, we 
received both a percentage of the online ticket sales and a percentage of the sale of the tickets sold 
at the gate on December 27, the night that our tree was featured.   
 
Palliative Care Association of Uganda (PCAU) 
 
We will host our partners from PCAU between March 15th – April 4th, 2020.  This will be PCAU’s 
sixth exchange visit to the US. Mark Mwesiga, the new PCAU Country Director, and Joyce 
Zalwango, the Capacity Building and Advocacy Officer, are scheduled to make the visit.  This will 
be Mark’s third time to visit but his first as PCAU’s Country Director.  Joyce will be traveling to 
the US for the first time.  She is one of the many nurses CHC/HF sponsored through the Diploma in 
Clinical Palliative Care course.  The exchange visit provides a platform for CHC/HF and PCAU 
staff to meet in person to deepen relationships, gain first-hand experience to better understand each 

PAGE - 21



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 8 

8 
 

other’s work, and share knowledge and ideas to enhance access of hospice and palliative care.  We 
are planning several meetings and events to engage our staff and community partners such as Notre 
Dame, IUSB and others.  Mark will also travel to the NHPCO Leadership and Advocacy 
Conference with CHC/HF staff.  In addition, this year’s edition of Okuyamba Fest will be held on 
April 2nd at The Brick.  
 
Roberta Spencer, our long-time CHC/HF volunteer, was in Uganda from Jan 17th - Feb 7th.  As 
with previous visits, she supported the Road to Hope (RTH) program and participated in the annual 
RTH Camp and Empowerment Retreat.  Her blog can be found on our website at 
https://foundationforhospice.org/uganda-trips/ 
 
The RTH Camp and Empowerment Retreat was held on Jan 23rd – 25th; 55 of the 57 children on 
the program attended.  The goal of this retreat is to help the children feel loved, valued as 
individuals, and empower them to the best of their abilities – and in making good choices, 
especially with making friends.  According to Roberta’s reports, the children are doing well and 
have grown emotionally and physically since the last camp.  They are appreciative of their sponsors 
and realize that the education they receive is thanks to their sponsors.  The children began the first 
trimester of the year on Feb 3rd.  We are continuing to work on our overall fundraising strategy. 
Some sponsors have increased their giving since we shared the new sponsorship costs, but we still 
have gaps to fill. 
 
Kat Kostolansky, a junior at the University of Notre Dame who spent a successful summer working 
with PCAU supporting the Road to Hope program, will continue her internship in the office for the 
spring semester.  She will work with us on an evaluation of the RTH program.  Ainur 
Kagarmanova, a Master of Science in Global Health student from the University of Notre Dame, is 
working with the mHealth project.  She will be in Uganda during May and June.  
 
Regarding the Advanced Diploma in Palliative Care Nursing (ADCPCN), the continuing students 
will be resuming their semester on 20th January 2020.  The new students will be interviewed in 
March, then start the program in July 2020.  Coordination with the hospital directors and district 
health officers is ongoing to ensure effective recruitment of the students. 
 
Health System/Education Collaborations 
 
During December, the Center for Education & Advance Care Planning (CEACP) hosted “Cupcakes 
to Die for” on our Mishawaka Campus.  This event showcased the educational opportunities offered 
through CEACP to area organizations.  Through the event we connected with Grand Emerald.  We 
will be collaborating with them in 2020 on a webinar series that offers CEs for their home health 
administrative employees.  The collaboration will be built on the same model as the Saint Joseph 
Health System (SJHS) webinar series.  One of the many benefits of working with SJHS is that it has 
increased awareness of end-of-life issues to a variety of disciplines as well as giving CHC/HF 
another touchpoint there. We are scheduling the 2020 series now.  
 
Legislator Education 
 
As the MyHospice Ambassador for the state of Indiana, Elleah Tooker took on “social media day” 
at the beginning of November.  Elleah and I partnered with Dr. Lyle Fettig, Director of the Hospice 
and Palliative Medicine fellowship program at the IU School of Medicine to send a letter to Senator 

PAGE - 22

https://foundationforhospice.org/uganda-trips/


02/19/20 President’s Report – page 9 

9 
 

Mike Braun requesting his support for the Palliative Care and Hospice Education and Training Act 
(PCHETA).  This bill is supported by NHPCO and garnered bipartisan support in the House where 
it passed.  Elleah is also working with the offices of senators Mike Braun and Todd Young to 
arrange visits to our Mishawaka Campus.  Senator Braun’s staffers have pushed to have him visit in 
2020.  In her role as a MyHospice Ambassador, Elleah will continue to work with our senators and 
representatives to ensure that bills benefiting the hospice community are supported in the House 
and Senate. 
 
Community Education 
 
We are partnering with Chicory Café (Mishawaka) to bring “Death by Chocolate” to downtown 
Mishawaka.  This Mardi Gras-themed event will focus on normalizing conversations about end-of-
life care by providing a welcoming atmosphere with food and educational games.  The event is 
scheduled for 5:30 pm on February 25th – watch your email for an invite with RSVP.  
 
Advance Directives Education 
 
Part of our work with Honoring Choices Indiana – North Central is helping facilitate the completion 
of advance care directives.  Elleah, who completed Respecting Choices® First Steps facilitation 
certification, worked with Sr. Eileen Wrobleski to assist residents at Oakhaven in Bremen.  
 
Professional Education Collaborations 
 
We held our first education webinar with Advocacy Links in January.  Advocacy Links provides 
services for individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities.  The company provides 
training webinars quarterly and worked with the Center for Education & Advance Care Planning to 
develop educational offerings for their employees.  The first was “Hospice 101”; in October we will 
provide another webinar on supported choices and end-of-life arrangements. 
 
Ernestine M. Raclin House 
 
Construction is complete at our new 12-bed inpatient facility, the Ernestine M. Raclin House.  Staff 
orientations took place in January.  We are presently working on completing behind-the-scenes IT 
and AV infrastructure items as well as furnishing and open punch list items.  Once all those items 
are completed, we will schedule the required inspections with the ISDH and open immediately 
thereafter. 
 
Residential Housing 
 
The Cedar Street home was sold at a purchase price of $384,900.  The new neighbors have moved 
in.  They also purchased the second lot, there will be no second residential property, and this project 
is completed. 
 
Roseland Remodel 
 
We’re currently working with Jeff Helman and Brad Sechrist on plans to remodel and transform the 
Roseland facility into the new home for Milton Village and the Caregiver Connection at Milton 

PAGE - 23



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 10 

10 
 

Village, and the offices for the Institute for Advance Memory Care operated by Alzheimer’s and 
Dementia Services of Northern Indiana. 
 
Maintenance Building 
 
Plans are underway for construction of the new maintenance building which will be located on our 
land located at the corner of the Pine Street and Comfort Place. Construction will begin this spring. 
 
 
GLOBAL PARTNERS IN CARE 
 
General Updates 
 
We were awarded a $10,000 grant from the Ronald W. Naito MD Foundation in Portland, OR to 
support our Partnership Program.  They actually contacted us to apply.  We are working closely 
with Chris Taelman to make further advances in this area and GPIC is now included as an area of 
focus for the larger HF fundraising strategy which is being guided by an outside consultant.  The 
HF is planning to add a grant writer to staff this year, which will benefit GPIC as well.  In 2019, we 
established two new partnerships and had two additional potential partnerships that we are hopeful 
will launch in the coming months.  St. Luke’s Hospital (Malawi) visited Hospice of Northwest Ohio 
(Toledo) and HNO and St. Luke’s staff visited GPIC Feb 5-7, spending the 6th with us at the 
Mishawaka Campus.  All visitors stayed at our guest house. 
 
GPIC activities for 2020 continue to center around three goals:  1.)  Research and Education, 2.) 
Effectively communicate GPIC branding and raise profile of GPIC internationally, and 3.) Establish 
financial and operational sustainability for GPIC.  We currently have 37 partnerships. 
 
We continue to remain engaged in several research collaborations with various university and 
organizational partners, all of whom are very supportive of our role as a collaborator on these 
projects.  They include:  Understanding the Challenges of the Ageing Population in Ghana with the 
University of Alberta, College of Saint Benedict and St. John’s University in Minnesota, and the 
African Palliative Care Association (APCA); and Telehospice in Tanzania with the University of 
Kansas Medical Center (KUMC), University of Notre Dame (UND) and Evangelical Lutheran 
Church in Tanzania;  
 
GPIC will be attending the NHPCO Leadership and Advocacy Conference, Washington, DC in late 
March.  We will have a team attending this conference representing both CHC and GPIC.  GPIC 
will hold a meeting of our Advisory Council and a GPIC luncheon to gather our partners and give 
our Global Partnership Award.  As we did in 2018 GPIC will be present at the International 
Congress on Palliative Care, Montreal, CA to raise GPIC’s profile among potential partners.  This 
was a good meeting place for some partner organizations.  We have submitted an abstract for a 
partnership workshop and are considering attending in 2020.  GPIC staff person Lacey Ahern and 
Sheba Nyakaisiki (from Uganda Martyrs University) will likely be attending the Consortium of 
Universities for Global Health Conference, Washington, DC.  CHC/HF and the University of Notre 
Dame have worked with Sheba on the mHealth project with PCAU.  She will also visit 
SB/Mishawaka in April and be hosted by the University of Notre Dame along with CHC/HF. 
 
 

PAGE - 24



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 11 

11 
 

COMMUNICATIONS, MARKETING, AND ACCESS 
 
Craig Harrell, Director of Marketing and Access, reports on marketing and access activities for 
November & December 2019 – January 2020  
 
Referral, Professional, & Community Outreach 
 
Our Professional Community Liaisons continue to contact doctor’s offices, clinics, hospitals, group 
homes and extended care facilities in order to build relationships and generate referrals.  In 
November 2019 through January 2020 our four Professional Relations Liaisons completed 1,492 
visits to current and potential referral sources within our service area.  They accomplished 419, 479, 
and 594 visits in November thru January respectively.  
 
Peter Ashley, Community Relations and Engagement Liaison, left CHC in December to take a VP 
of Marketing position at Hanover College.  We’re proud to announce that Sarah Youngs has 
accepted and begun working in her new role. Previously, Sarah worked in the Admissions 
Department for six years, in part as Admissions Coordinator, where she gained extensive 
knowledge and experience of educating the public regarding our mission, values and services.  She 
will oversee non-medical referral sources such as veteran groups, community organizations, faith 
communities and chambers of commerce.  Sarah also comes to Center for Hospice Care’s 
Marketing Department with 10+ years marketing and operations experience where she previously 
operated and/or marketed a start-up home health agency 2007-2011, adult day care 2017-2019 and 
assisted living 2019.  While at each company, Sarah was instrumental in their growth by increasing 
referrals, community outreach and awareness as well as overall success of the companies.  We’re 
extremely excited that Sarah has returned to CHC. 
 
Access 
 
We also were able to maintain a conversion rate of over 70% with the final statistic being 71.86%.  
That includes considering that we had an increase in “deaths before admission” (DBA) of 8.03% of 
all referrals which was an increase over the previous year of 5.1%.  
 
In 2019 the average daily census (ADC) in hospice increased while home health increased 57.84% 
for an overall increase of 6.81%.  Part of our Marketing focus has been in long-term care which led 
to an increase in the number of our patients in facilities (Extended Care Facilities, Assisted Living 
Facilities and Group Homes) of over 11.51% compared with the same time last year.  Our same or 
next day referral to admit was 51.55% in 2019, with no significant statistical change over 2018. 
 
Website 
 
Our new website launched in January and is designed to allow caregivers and those facing life-
limiting illnesses to easily find information about hospice, and specifically, information about 
Center for Hospice Care that would encourage them to contact us for help.  The homepage has three 
tabs entitled, “I am a caregiver.”, “I have a life-limiting illness.” and “I am grieving the loss of a 
loved one.”  Also listed are testimonial quotes, links to patient stories as well as upcoming events 
and links to further information about our organization.  It is branded with the consistency of the 
other CHC websites including the Hospice Foundation, Center for Education for Advance Care 
Planning, Global Partners in Care and soon to be Milton Adult Day Care.  Although the bulk of the 

PAGE - 25



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 12 

12 
 

changes are complete, the website will be an ongoing project.  One of the new features will be 360-
degree photos of specific locations (patient rooms, common areas, etc.) of the new Ernestine M. 
Raclin House that will allow a realistic view of the facility with plans to also include Esther’s House 
soon.  The new site is also responsive and is easily viewed on mobile devices without losing quality 
of content. 
 
Social Media 
 
Facebook (Center4Hospice) 
 
Center for Hospice Care’s social media presence is increasing steadily. We continue to use 
Facebook to communicate information and events. CHC reached 135,992 people for the period of 
November 2019 – January 2020, and had 17,259 reactions, comments and shares.  Our leading post 
was on January 7th: Our People are Everything.  It highlighted our incredible team of passionate 
and professional staff along with how honored we are to be with patients and families at this special 
time in their life.  It reached 4,315 people and generated 529 reactions, comments and shares.  The 
second most viewed posting was on January 25th and explained that CHC, for over 40 years, has 
lived up to its promise that anyone eligible for hospice services will not be turned away.  It reached 
3,815 people and generated 413 reactions, comments and shares, as well as 203 post clicks.  We 
currently have over 4,300 Facebook followers. 
 
Digital Overview 
 
The digital campaign focuses on delivering our ad to the proper audience at the proper time.  For the 
months of November – January it generated 153 telephone calls.  Google industry benchmarks show 
an average click-through rate in the Health & Medical field of 3.79 % and we continue to be high at 
10.36%. 
 
 
CLINICAL POLICIES ON THE AGENDA FOR APPROVAL 
 
There is only one clinical policy on the agenda, and it represents some simple cleanup of an existing 
policy “Articulation of Implanted Cardioverter/Defibrillators.” 
 
 
NATIONAL HOSPICE EXECUTIVE ROUNDTABLE MET IN JANUARY 
 
The National Hospice Executive Roundtable met January 5-6 in Miami, FL, home of our consultant, 
Peter Benjamin of the Huntington Consulting Group.  We meet each year the week after New 
Year’s because hotel rates are low and because Peter lives there and the group incurs no travel 
expenses for him.  Topics included program updates, positioning for the potential Medicare Hospice 
Managed Care carve out, ongoing contractor audits of hospice programs, CMS changes and 
strategies to deal with them, ransomware attacks, EEOC complaints, FLSA complaints, and Senior 
Team Composition/“Business Development” role/functions.  We also had a guest speaker, Bob 
Tavares, Chief Strategy Officer, at Cyft. in Boston, MA who presented on using Artificial 
Intelligence to accurately predict life expectancy.  Cyft. helps leading healthcare organizations turn 
their raw data into improved clinical and operational outcomes, including Harvard Medical School, 
Brigham and Women’s Hospital, the Department of Defense, the National Cancer Institute, over 

PAGE - 26



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 13 

13 
 

200 Department of Veterans Affairs Hospitals, Johns Hopkins, University of Utah, over 60 
community hospitals, Ariadne Labs, Optum, Senior Whole Health, Beacon Health Options, 
Neighborhood Health Plan, and more.  A recent NHPCO webinar indicated that A.I. can predict life 
expectancy in three-month windows (0-3, 3-6, 6-9) with 90% accuracy today.  Referral sources 
overestimate life expectancy by a factor of five, and hospice medical directors get the three-month 
window accurate at a rate of just 12%. 
 
The NHERT now is comprised of the CEOs from the following twelve programs: 
 
Care Synergy (The Denver Hospice, Halcyon Hospice, Pikes Peak Hospice and Palliative Care, 
Colorado Visiting Nurse Association, and Pathways), Denver, CO. 
Empath Health (Suncoast Hospice, et. al), Clearwater, FL 
Ohio's Hospice (Ohio’s Hospice of Dayton, Ohio’s Hospice at United Church Homes, Ohio’s 
Hospice of Miami County, Ohio’s Community Mercy Hospice, Ohio’s Hospice of Butler and 
Warren Counties, Hospice of Central Ohio, Ohio’s Hospice of Fayette County, Ohio’s Hospice 
LifeCare, Ohio’s Hospice Loving Care, and Community Care Hospice), Dayton, OH. 
Bluegrass Care Navigators, Lexington, KY 
Hospice of Northwestern Ohio, Toledo, OH 
Arkansas Hospice, North Little Rock, AR 
The Elizabeth Hospice, San Diego, CA 
Delaware Hospice, Wilmington, DE 
Midland Care Connection, Topeka, KS 
Transitions LifeCare, Raleigh, NC 
Catholic Hospice, Miami Lakes/Fort Lauderdale, FL 
Center for Hospice Care, Mishawaka, IN 
 
 
2019 ANNUAL GOALS FINAL RESULTS 
 
Included in your packet is a copy of the final status for the 91 individual goals for 2019.  Final 
status is broken down into four categories: “Met” means that the goal was achieved; “In Process” 
means the goal was started, but not yet completed during calendar year 2019 and likely carried over 
to 2020; “Not Doing” means after evaluating the goal we decided that for whatever reason we were 
not going to do the project; and “Not Met” means that we simply didn’t get to that goal at all or 
external factors made the goal unrealistic during the calendar year.  Results for 2019 are as follows: 
 
Total Number of Published Goals = 91 
 
Met = 65 (71%) 
In Process = 19 (21%) 
Not Met = 5 (5%) 
Not Doing = 2 (2%) 
 
For 2019, 92% of the 91 individual goals were either completed or were in the process of being 
completed at the end of the year.  We are delighted to answer specific questions on any of the goals 
and their status at the end of the year. 
 

PAGE - 27



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 14 

14 
 

Please note, each year, all annual goals are tied to the overarching goals of the Strategic Plan and 
their status is shared with the board annually at the first meeting of the year within this report. 
 
 
2020 GOALS  
 
Included in your packet are the 2020 Goals for Center for Hospice Care, Hospice Foundation, and 
Global Partners in Care.  Like we have done every year for the past 20 years, we have placed 
individual goals under the traditional headings which match the four overarching goals of the 
Strategic Plan.  The four overarching goals are:  Enhance Patient Care; Position for Future Growth; 
Maintain Economic Strength; and Continue Building Brand Identification.  Annual Goal 
development begins at the Coordinator level of management and they work their way up through 
Directors and eventually to the Administrative Team for final approval.  We always commence with 
ideas and concepts from what line staff and middle management staff believes we should 
accomplish as a leading hospice organization which allows us to improve and enhance our agency 
and the care we deliver.  For 2020, we have 76 individual goals. 
 
 
2019 BEREAVEMENT STATISTICS 
 
Of the total bereaved clients served (2,987) in 2019, 24% were from community with no connection 
to CHC.  69% were hospice family survivors and 7% were DBA (Died Before Admission)/Other 
(bereaved of patients who discharged alive and then died).  Last year, the Bereavement Department 
was averaging 139 deaths per month (including DBA/Other deaths).  Of the total individual/family 
counseling sessions (4,582) 1% were sessions with DBA/Other clients, 35% were with hospice 
clients and 64% were sessions with community clients.   
 
 
2019 VOLUNTEER STATISTICS 
 
CHC has several hundred volunteers in a wide variety of service.  Medicare requires that volunteers 
who are participating in direct patient care and hospice programming have their time and mileage be 
recorded, a dollar amount applied, and these amounts are reported to Medicare as a savings to the 
hospice on an annual basis.  Medicare Hospice is the only provider in the Medicare system required 
to have a volunteer component under federal statute.  During 2019, CHC hospice program 
volunteers worked 15,711 hours.  This is equivalent to 7.5 FTEs who never call in sick or take 
vacations.  These volunteers drove 46,281 miles.  This is like driving around the world nearly two 
times.  Volunteers in this capacity provided dollar savings to CHC during 2019 totaling $418,498, 
up 3% from 2018. 
 
 
CHC IN CMS CPI LONG LENGTH OF STAY AUDIT 
 
Like many hospice programs across the country, including those members of the National Hospice 
Executive Roundtable, CHC received notification in a letter dated 1/17/2020 that we are now part of 
a long length of stay audit.  The CMS contracted vendor is requesting everything (thousands of 
pages) on ten patients who were all admitted or on census in 2017.  These account for 330 months 
of claims and a claim is generated daily as Medicare Hospice is a per diem program.  The total 

PAGE - 28



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 15 

15 
 

dollar amount of these claims total around $1.2MM.  From what I hear, no provider who is going 
through this audit – which began over a year ago -- has received any demand letters so far.  Toledo 
went through this back in June of last year and there has been no recoupment of funds or any 
attempt.  This is a very large national audit of individual programs.  I contacted Meg Pekarske, 
Hospice Law Attorney at Husch Blackwell, LLP, to represent us in this matter and we have engaged 
her and her team.  She is a nationally recognized hospice attorney who has been doing this for 20 
years.  She is one of the best and most respected in the nation on situations such as these and is 
being used by numerous Roundtable clients as well as many other large and leading hospice 
organizations.  https://www.huschblackwell.com/professionals/meg-pekarske  The Administrative 
Team had a one-hour phone call with her on 1/29/2020 and are on our way in putting together the 
requested material.  We were successful in being granted an extension by the government contractor 
conducting this audit, Noridian, and now have until 3/25/2020 to get the materials to them which, 
because of the sheer volume of records requested, will be sent via CD-ROM.  Meg also indicated 
that this contractor is generating reports for individual programs after examining the materials that 
all have a 97% to 100% error rate.  Some are being told everything they sent is wrong.  This is not 
an audit where sampling methodology is used and then extrapolated into a larger take back by 
applying the error rate to a universe of claims.  There are numerous appeals processes and an 
eventual appeal before an Administrative Law Judge where hospices frequently win if they can get 
that far.  Getting that far could take as long as five years.  Several years ago, you may remember 
that we were in a Medicaid hospice audit on 12 patients with much shorter lengths of stay.  After 
about five years we were eventually paid for all but two of the patients and our Chief Medical 
Officer did eventually speak to an ALJ. 
 
Most hospice CEOs in my sphere believe this is the new normal for hospice programs in the United 
States. 
 
 
2019 - 2021 STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE 
 
Included in the February 2019 board packet was the 2016 – 2018 Strategic Plan final status report 
and the new 2019 – 2021 Strategic Plan, “Preparing for Things to Come.”  The current strategic 
plan contains items for the Hospice Foundation and Global Partners in Care.  Because those boards 
are also on the CHC Board, it seemed more expeditious and manageable to present one plan for all 
three entities than three separate plans.  Items in development from the plan during calendar year 
2019 included: Develop a marketing plan for private pay room and board for CHC’s inpatients 
units (this is currently in development); fully integrate palliative care into CHC programming and 
provide resources, innovations, education, and communication on palliative care to the community 
(this continues to be in development and palliative care patients were up 59% in 2019 compared to 
2018.  We are continuing to monitor on a bill currently in the Indiana State Legislature to allow 
hospice programs to care for non-hospice eligible patients under “palliative care.”  This is 
something I’ve personally been working on as a member of the state funded Indiana Palliative Care 
and Quality of Life Advisory Council (2016-2019).  The Council’s funding was sunset last year.  
Redomesticate Global Partners in Care from the State of New York to Indiana (our Indianapolis-
based non-profit specialty attorney is working on this now.  Due to the peculiarities of New York 
State, we will have to create a new Indiana corporation first and then transfer GPIC here); Consider 
developing a new position tentatively titled “Director of Strategic Initiatives” (I have personally 
approached three individuals regarding this position with no luck.  I am now planning on paring 
down the draft job description); and Continue expanding CHC/HF’s role to be perceived as the 

PAGE - 29

https://www.huschblackwell.com/professionals/meg-pekarske


02/19/20 President’s Report – page 16 

16 
 

principle resource, leader and voice of hospice and palliative care by being the convener to engage 
key community stakeholders in the design of what end-of-life care looks like in our community 
(Honoring Choices Indiana – North Central, now a d/b/a of Hospice Foundation, continues to grow 
programming and hired a part-time staff person (who recently announced her retirement) and 
potential new, additional committee members were interviewed two weeks ago.  Again, this is a 
brief update of what we were working on during 2019 to advance the plan. 
 
The issue the bill currently in the State Legislature referenced above is attempting to resolve: 
1. The gap in care between curative care and hospice care.   
2. Indiana hospice license does not provide for community based palliative care services. 
3. Palliative care is not time limited and curative treatment can continue 
4. Palliative care is no longer defined in state statute. 
 
With the perceived solution that would: 
1. Define palliative care and community based palliative care  
2. Allow licensed hospice providers the opportunity to provide community based palliative 

care to non-hospice eligible patients 
3. Per ISDH, require approved palliative care certifications in addition to hospice license to 

provide care in home settings. 
 
The IHPCO Board of Directors met on February 6 and my impression is that all of us had serious 
reservations.  Comments like “cart before the horse” and “not ready for primetime” were common. 
 
 
BOARD COMMITTEE SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES 
 
Committee service by all board members is encouraged by the Executive Committee.  A listing of 
the Committees of the Board and a brief description of each is attached to this report for your 
review.  Also, please note the “Specialty Committees” section which is open to all board members.   
 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY STATEMENT 
 
You will be asked to sign a conflict of interest policy statement for 2020.  This is the same 
statement used in previous years.  It is signed each year by every member of the board of directors 
to meet the requirements of our annual audit and answer specific questions on the IRS Form 990, 
the nonprofit “tax” return.  The document is included as an attachment to this report for you to 
review prior to Wednesday’s meeting.  We will have hard copies available for you to sign at the 
board meeting. 
 
 
BOARD EDUCATION SECTION 
 
The board education section will be “2019: The Year in Review” presented by your humble 
narrator. 
 
 
 

PAGE - 30



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 17 

17 
 

OUT AND ABOUT 
 
Several staff and board members attended the welcome reception for Dr, Colin Bowman, the latest 
Vera Z. Dwyer Fellow in Hospice and Palliative Medicine at the Indiana University School of 
Medicine at the University of Notre Dame on November 21. 
 
All CHC/HF/GPIC and Milton Adult Day Services employees and their children/grandchildren 
were invited to our annual “Donuts with Santa” on Saturday, December 7 from 9-11 AM at the 
Mishawaka Campus.  95 people attended compared to 72 in 2018. 
 
The Vivium Hoewey group from the Netherlands spent nearly three days with us to discuss 
programming for Milton Village.  They are international leaders in programming for dementia 
patients and well respected around the world.   
 
I attended the National Hospice Executive Roundtable meeting in Miami, FL January 5 – 7. 
 
The Administrative Team participated in New Board Member Orientation on January 28 from 7:30 
- 9:30 AM. 
 
Saint Joseph Regional Medical Center leadership along with some Trinity staff from Livonia, MI, 
held several meetings at the Ernestine M. Raclin House on January 29 and 30.  A reception was 
held in their honor the afternoon/evening of 1/30 in the family room which they generously 
underwrote.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS TO THIS PRESIDENT’S REPORT IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING 
THIS SECTION OF THE .PDF 
 
Dave Haley’s Census Charts. 
 
Karl Holderman’s Monthly dashboard summaries. 
 
Volunteer Newsletters for December 2019, January 2020, February 2020 
 
Board Committee Opportunity Sheet 
 
Conflict of Interest Policy 
 
Copy of final status report for the 2019 Goals 
 
Copy of the 2020 Goals 
 
NHPCO Statement on House Program Integrity Legislation 
 
Press Release on 73-year-old man bicycling from Florida to California in memory of his daughter to 
raise funds for CHC. 
 

PAGE - 31



02/19/20 President’s Report – page 18 

18 
 

NPR Morning Edition article, “Patients Want to Die at Home, But Home Hospice Care Can Be 
Tough on Families” 
 
Front page South Bend Tribune article from 1/5/2020 on “Making Dementia Care More Inclusive” 
regarding our plans on repurposing the South Bend property for expansion of Milton Adult Day 
Services 
 
Thank you letter for care received locally from Malvern, PA. 
 
Front page South Bend Tribune article, from 11/22/19 regarding “Hospice Inpatient Site to Open 
Soon” 
 
South Bend Tribune article from 12/15/2019 regarding the Mishawaka Police Department raising 
money for CHC for No Shave November. 
 
Article from Science News “Planning for Future care May be Linked to Longer Survival in 
Terminally Ill Patients” 
 
CNN Wire Story “More People in the US are Dying at Home than at the Hospital” 
 
STAT article, “More Americans are Dying at Home.  Is that a Good Thing?” 
 
 
HARD COPY BOARD ITEMS TO BE DISTRIBUTED AT THE MEETING 
 
January 2020 CHC Financials. 
 
2020 HF Events Schedule that all Board Members are Invited to Attend 
 
Conflict of Interest Policy Statement for the required signatures 
 
Common Abbreviations (always handed out at board meetings) 
 
 
NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
Our next regular Board Meeting will be Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 7:15 AM in Conference 
Room A, first floor at the Mishawaka Campus, 501 Comfort Place, Mishawaka, IN  46545.  In the 
meantime, if you have any questions, concerns, suggestions or comments, please contact me 
directly at 574-243-3117 or email mmurray@cfhcare.org . 
 

# # # 

PAGE - 32

mailto:mmurray@cfhcare.org


All South Bend Elkhart Plymouth LaPorte
J 378 195 95 74 14
F 394 202 98 77 18
M 405 209 99 79 18
A 420 222 101 77 20
M 428 225 105 74 24
J 441 233 109 76 23
J 439 240 111 67 21
A 429 237 111 66 15
S 425 229 114 69 13
O 428 234 114 68 12
N 424 236 110 65 13
D 432 231 119 71 12

2019 YTD Totals 5043 2693 1286 863 203

2019 YTD ADC 420 224 107 72 17

2018 YTD ADC 394 208 91 82 13

YTD Change 2018 to 2019 26 16 16 -10 NA

YTD % Change 2018 to 2019 6.7% 7.9% 17.8% -12.3% NA

2019 ADC by Branch

South Bend 53%
Elkhart 26%

Plymouth 17%
LaPorte 4%

All 100%

Center for Hospice Care
2019 YTD Average Daily Census (ADC)

(includes Hospice House and Home Health)

53% 

26% 

17% 

4% 

South Bend

Elkhart

Plymouth

LaPorte

2019 YTD ADC  
by Branch 

PAGE - 33



350

360

370

380

390

400

410

420

430

440

450

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

2017

2016

                     ADC 
YTD 2019 = 420 
        2018 = 394 
        2017 = 384 
        2016 = 399 

PAGE - 34



170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240

250

J F M A M

South
Average Daily Census

200

210

220

230

240

250

260

Average Daily Census

190

200

210

220

230

240

250

260

190

200

210

220

230

240

250

260

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

2017

2016

South Bend 
Average Daily Census 

                    ADC 
YTD 2019 = 224 
        2018 = 208 
        2017 = 225 
        2016 = 228 

PAGE - 35



50

60

70

80

90

100

110

J F M A M J

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

J F M A M

Average

75

80

85

90

95

100

105

J F M A

                    ADC 

75
80
85
90
95

100
105
110
115
120
125

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

2017

2016

Elkhart 
Average Daily Census 

                    ADC 
YTD 2019 =107 
        2018 = 91 
        2017 = 90 
        2016 = 96 

PAGE - 36



45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

J F M A

Average

50

J F M A

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

Average

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

J F M A60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

2017

2016

Plymouth 
Average Daily Census 

                    ADC 
YTD 2019  =  72 
        2018  =  82 
        2017  =  69 
        2016  =  75 

J F M A M J J A S O N D

PAGE - 37



0

4

8

12

16

20

24

28

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

            LaPorte 
Average Daily Census 

                   ADC 
YTD 2019 = 17 
        2018 = 13 

PAGE - 38



Patients Served 

2,200 

2,100 

2,000 1,902 

1,900 

1,800 

1,700 

1,600 

1,500 

1,400 

1,300 

1,200 

Prior Year 

Average Daily Census 

Hospice 

Home Health 

Total Average Daily Census 

450 

425 

400 

375 

350 

325 

Prior Year 

*** Budgeted Breakeven 

Operating Revenue 

21,000,000 

20,500,000 

20,000,000 

19,500,000 

19,000,000 

18,500,000 

18,000,000 

Total Expenses 

20,000,000 

19,500,000 

19,000,000 

18,500,000 

18,000,000 

17,500,000 

17,000,000 

16,500,000 

16,000,000 

Prior Year 

Prior Year 

Center for Hospice Care 

November 30, 2019 

Budget 

Prior Year Budget 

1,902 1,928 

Patients Served 

1,928 

Budget 

Prior Year Budget 

375.80 380.00 

18.16 20.00 

393.96 400.00 

Average Daily Census 

***Breakeven 

Prior Year 

20,369,503 

Actual 

Budget 

20,450,570 

Operating Revenue 

Budget 

Prior Year Budget 

18,208,223 20,159,266 

Total Expenses 

Budget 

Actual 

1,918 

1,918 

Actual 

***Breakeven Actual 

361.93 389.80 

19.05 29.52 

380.98 419.32 

II Home Health 

11 H
.
ospice 

Actual 

21,097,463 

Actual 

Actual 

19,069,922 

Actual 
PAGE - 39



with that time that mat-
ters. Grief is the process 
by which you heal. Ex-
periencing the pain    
rather than constantly 
trying to escape it can 
actually help you feel 
better in the long term. 

So while it may be 
tempting to pretend the 
holidays don't exist, or to 
numb the pain with    
alcohol, temporarily 
avoiding the pain, only 
prolongs the anguish. 
Eventually, the holidays 
will get  easier, but only 
if you allow yourself to 

By: Amy Morin          

The swell of grief 
around the holidays is a 
common reason clients 
enter my therapy office 
this time of year. People 
often seek help for the 
immense sorrow that 
starts surfacing right 
around Thanksgiving. 

I experienced that wave 
of grief in my own life 
when my husband 
passed away. Christmas 
music, holiday parties, 
and festive decorations 
that were meant to bring 

joy, served as painful 
reminders of my loss. 
Like most people experi-
encing loss, the holiday 
season was the most 
painful time of all. 

If you're wondering how 
to get through the holi-
days this year without 
your loved one, these 
strategies can help: 

1. Trust that Grief is Part 
of Healing 

Time doesn't heal the 
pain associated with a 
loss, it's what you do 

H o w  t o  D e a l  w i t h  G r i e f  
D u r i n g  t h e  H o l i d a y s  

I ns i de  t h i s  i s s ue :  

Welcome to the Team 2 

Birthdays 2 

Skills Validation Day 2 

Volunteer Spotlight: 

Ingrid Hirte 

3 

Training Tips &  

Reminders 

4 

Volunteer Needs 4 

 

Welcome New     

Volunteers 
5 

Comments from Our 

Families 
5 

Grief and the      

Holidays, Continued 
6 

 
 
 
D e c e m b e r  2 0 1 9   

Volunteer Newsletter 

Continued on page 6 
PAGE - 40

https://www.psychologytoday.com/us/basics/alcohol
https://www.psychologytoday.com/us/basics/grief
https://www.psychologytoday.com/us/basics/therapy


W e l c o m e  

t o  t h e  

T e a m  Antoinette Waite 
South Bend RN 

 
 

 

 
 

 

B i r t h d a y s  

12/24  

Richard Keen 

12/25  

Carolyn Bennett 

12/25  

Catherine Bly 

12/25  

Kathleen Matuszak 

12/28  

Shelley Rivard 

12/30  

Carole Moats 

12/31  

Carol Briggs 

 

 

12/1  

Barbara Zimlich 

12/1  

Tim Lankford 

12/2  

Sarah Nerenberg 

12/2  

Richard Schweizer 

12/3  

Kate Siupinski 

12/5  

Leslie Eid 

12/6  

Al Levy 

12/7  

Pamela Garrett 

12/9  

Ruth Ann Gardner 

12/9  

Blanche Sailor 

12/11  

Mary Kay Ferry 

12/14  

Norah Ray 

12/15  

Michael Seraphin 

12/16  

Norma Diedrich 

12/18  

Amy Deel 

12/20  

Marjorie Fink 

P a g e  2  

S k i l l s  V a l i d a t i o n  D a y  

Christy Campbell 
Elkhart IPU Coordinator 

 

Courtney Dye 
South Bend IPU RN 

 

Maranda Houser 
Resource Social Worker 

 

Sari Moore 
Commercial Billing Representative 

 

Agnes Ndisya 
Mishawaka Social Worker 

 

John Piper 
IT Service Desk Technician 

 

Stacy Stephens 
Home Health Billing Representative 

 

Gayle Waldenmaier 
Nurse Practitioner 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
Location: Mishawaka Campus 
Time Slots: 30 minute time slots 
Time slots begin at 8:00am 
Last one at 5:30pm  
Lunch Break from 1:00-1:30pm 
 
To schedule your time slot, call or email 
Kristiana Donahue at  
donahuek@cfhcare.org 
Or (574) 286-1198 

 

Who should attend? 
All Level 3 trained CHC 
volunteers. Those who 
have completed training 
to help patients with per-
sonal care.  
How often do we need to 
be validated? 
Once a year. In 2020, we 
are offering a skills vali-
dation day in January and 
one in the summer. Level 
3 volunteers must attend 
one of these.  

PAGE - 41



V o l u n t e e r  S p o t l i g h t      
I n g r i d  H i r t e ,   S o u t h  B e n d  

Why do you volunteer 
with CHC? 

Last fall at Notre Dame, 
I took a course on hos-
pice and palliative care 
and CHC came in to talk 
more about what their 
services involve. At the 
end of the presentation, 
they discussed volunteer 
opportunities that were 

What volunteer work do 
you do with CHC? How 
long have you been  a 
volunteer with CHC? 
I volunteer for CHC as 
an ECF companion and 
visit my assigned hos-
pice patient weekly. I 
have been with CHC for 
just over 1 year now. 
 

Dame currently and am 
majoring in Science Pre-
Professional studies with 
a minor in Compassion-
ate Care in Medicine. 
After I graduate, I will 
be attending medical 
school, but I’m still in 
the interviewing process 
and have not yet deter-
mined where I will go.  

What talents/hobbies do 
you enjoy? 
I really enjoy figure 
skating, ice hockey, vol-
leyball, running, water 
skiing, wake boarding 
and wake surfing. I like 
reading books and 
watching cooking shows 
when I have some free 
time. 

 
 

available, and at that 
time, I was volunteering 
in the ER at a local hos-
pital cleaning rooms and 
wanted to have more 
patient interaction. I 
reached out and signed 
up to volunteer with hos-
pice. The reason I chose 
hospice volunteer work 
is because I am a very 
outgoing individual who 
loves spending time with 
others and getting to 
know them better. I 
wanted to take time out 
of my schedule to give 
back and be present for 
my patient. 

What is your favorite 
quote? 
“I always get to where 
I’m going by walking 
away from where I’ve 
been” – Pooh 

What do you like to do 
in your spare time? 
In my free time I really 
enjoy catching up on 
sleep because sleep is 
essential for college! I 
love cooking and baking, 
working out, tutoring 
student-athletes in or-
ganic chemistry and cell 
biology, golfing, hunting 
and spending time with 
my friends and boy-
friend. When I can go 
home from school, I re-
ally enjoy walking my 
Siberian Husky, Yukon, 
and spending time with 
my parents. 

Where are you from 
originally? 
I’m from Green Bay, WI 
and I’m a big Packers 
fan! I am a Senior at the 
University of Notre 

P a g e  3  

“Ingrid is a young lady 
with a big heart for 
hospice work! Her 
compassion bridges 
any age gap and 
improves the quality of 
life for every patient 
she serves at CHC.” 
 
Debra Mayfield, 

Mishawaka Volunteer 

Coordinator 

 

PAGE - 42



T r a i n i n g  T i p s  &  R e m i n d e r s  

Decreased Appetite 
One of the most misunderstood and difficult things for families to deal with is a 
patient’s lack of appetite or in many cases, no appetite.  We’ve chosen to address 
this change at length, because it is so stressful for families. 
 
As changes begin to take place within the patient’s body, the hunger and need for 
food lessens greatly.  Nothing tastes good, cravings come and go, liquids are fre-
quently preferred to solids.  This does not mean that eating should not be encour-
aged, but the patient’s limitations and choices should be respected.  The following 
suggestions may be helpful: 
 Honor the patient’s request for certain types of food and do not be discour-

aged if they only eat a small portion. 
 Serve food in small portions on small plates so as not to overwhelm the pa-

tient. 
 Frequent small meals and snacks may be tolerated better than the traditional 

“three meals a day.” 
 Concentrate on food or liquids higher in calories if less is being eaten. 
 Monitor the patient’s eating routine to determine if there is a particular time of 

day when eating is best. 
 Serve food in a comfortable and relaxing atmosphere. 
 
As an illness and weakness progress, eating usually decreases.  The body begins to 
shut down the functions of eating and digestion to conserve energy.  This is not an 
uncomfortable process.  Forcing a patient to eat may cause physical discomfort 
and distress.  This may be evident through signs of the patient coughing, choking, 
nausea, or vomiting.  Notify the hospice nurse to discuss these concerns and for 
further instructions. 
 
It will also become evident in the last stages of a patient’s illness that the need for 
fluids also decreases.  We continue to stress that this is part of the natural process 
of dying.  As fluids lessen, there may actually be relief from some uncomfortable 
physical symptoms.  There will be: 
 Less fluid in the throat and lungs to reduce coughing and congestion 
 Decreased stomach fluids that may reduce episodes of vomiting 
 Less need for urination 
 Swelling may decrease, lessening feelings of pressure and tightness 
 
A patient’s comfort and dignity will always be our priority.  We will consult and 
work with the physician and family to meet the patient’s needs.  Staff is always 
available to talk with the family about their feelings, especially regarding difficult 
issues. 

P a g e  4  

Vo l u n t e e r  

N e e d s  

 
While we are always look-
ing for Home Visit Volun-
teers across the area, we 
also have a need for the 
following: 
 
South Bend 
 Hairdresser 
 Barbers 
 Pet Visitors 
 
Elkhart 
 Hairdressers 
 Barbers 
 
Plymouth 
 Hairdressers 
 Barbers 
 Veteran Volunteers 
 Office  
 Hospitality 
 Tuck-In 
 
LaPorte 
  Any opportunity 

PAGE - 43



P a g e  5  

C o m m e n t s  

f r o m  O u r  

Fa m i l i e s  

 
 Even though she was in 

your care only a short 
time, we appreciate all the 
kindness that was shown 
to her and the family. 
Everyone we came in con-
tact with was awesome. 
Thank you for making us 
all as comfortable as pos-
sible during mom’s ill-
ness. I’m sure if mom was 
here she would agree the 
quality of care you pro-
vide is the best. Thanks 
again.  

 
 CHC was very helpful. 

The staff and volunteers 
were great. When I would 
call and ask for help or 
anything, they were right 
here. I could not ask for 
anything that I didn’t re-
ceive. Thank you for eve-
rything.  

 
 Our hospice rep arranged 

for my dad to have a mili-
tary pinning ceremony 
with a veteran Marine and 
was given a medal and 
plaque for his service. 
This was very special for 
our family, as my dad was 
cremated and wanted no 
funeral, so a military fu-
neral was not possible. 
Much appreciated by all 
of our family members.  

 

 

W e l c o m e  N e w  V o l u n t e e r s  

Help us welcome these new volunteers who finished their training in November. 
Please introduce yourself to these volunteers as they begin their service with 
CHC.  

Kay Kizer 
Plymouth 

Richard Pipher 
Elkhart 

Stacy Pynaert 
Mishawaka 

Donna Jewell 
Plymouth 

Heidi Payton 
Mishawaka 

PAGE - 44



C h o i c e s  t o  
m a k e  t h e  m o s t  

o f  l i f e . . .  

experience the grief of 
going through them 
without your loved one. 

2. Set Healthy    
Boundaries 

You certainly don't 
have to force yourself 
to face every holiday 
event or celebratory 
tradition, however. If 
attending a tree lighting 
ceremony or participat-
ing in the office gift 
swap is likely to bring 
about too many painful 
memories this year, be 
willing to say no. Other 
people may try to con-
vince you to participate, 
but you certainly don't 
have to try and please 
everyone. 

3. Focus on What You 
Can Control 

There are a lot of things 
you can't control about 
the holidays. You may 
be subjected to Christ-
mas music in the wait-
ing room of your doc-
tor's office or you may 
overhear your co-
workers constantly talk-
ing about their holiday 
plans. While you can't 
prevent those things 
from happening, there 
are some things you can 
control. 

 

Think about what you 
can do to lessen the 
heartache when you can. 
It's OK to limit your dec-
orations or shop for pre-
sents online only. Pick a 
few things you can do to 
assert some control over 
the holiday cheer and 
keep in mind, that life 
goes on for other people 
and it's OK that they're 
happy to celebrate this 
year. 

4. Plan Ahead 

Often, the anticipation 
over how hard something 
is going to be is worse 
than the actual event. So 
while Thanksgiving din-
ner may only last two 
hours, you could easily 
spend three weeks dread-
ing it. Create a simple 
plan for how you'll get 
through the holidays to 
avoid extending your an-
guish. 

About the Author: Amy 
Morin is a licensed clini-
cal social worker,  psy-
chotherapist, college psy-
chology instructor and 
internationally recog-
nized expert on mental 
strength. 

https://www.psychologyt
oday.com/us/experts/amy
-morin  

Continued from page 1 

PAGE - 45



Spending Time with  
Family 
On the ride home after re-
ceiving the diagnosis, Stan 
and his wife, Elvera, began 
planning a trip out west. 
Years ago, they took a road 
trip to California during 
which the older children 
raved about the Redwoods. 
Now, with younger chil-
dren added to the family, 
they wanted to take the trip 
again. It wasn’t the most 
convenient time to do it - 
with crops ready to harvest 
- but crops were urgent, 
this was important. Stan 
noted in his journal: 
I am shocked at how fast 

my condition is moving. My 

muscles are shrinking fast. 

An electrical sensation has 

covered my entire body, 

making sleep difficult. Fa-

tigue is keeping me from 

functioning. I was looking 

forward to this western 

trip, figuring if we did it 

right away, I would really 

enjoy it. I really have to 

push myself. I can’t keep up 

with my family. They have 

been so understanding. I 

have loved being with 

them. Trying to help the 

children process what is 

happening. They’re all very 

angry at God. They have 

had so much loss.  

By: Kristiana Donahue          

Stan Miller lives on a gor-
geous piece of property 
dotted with beautiful barns, 
a farmhouse and even a 
curious cat. I came to talk 
to Stan about his life. A 
polite teenager greeted me 
with a smile and welcomed 
me inside. Stan was already 
talking with his nurse, Jes-
sica. The house was warm 
and cozy, full of family 
photos and farmhouse 
charm. Yet the warmest 
feeling came when Stan 
opened up in a vulnerable 
and sincere way. With gen-

uine transparen-
cy, Stan’s words 
challenge us to 
open up ourselves 
and allow our 
common humani-
ty to bind us to-
gether.   
Stan began jour-
naling soon after 
his diagnosis with 
ALS, commonly 
referred to as Lou 
Gehrig’s disease. 
Per Wikipedia, 
“ALS is charac-
terized by stiff 
muscles, muscle 
twitching, and 
gradually worsen-
ing weakness due 

to muscles decreasing in 
size. Most eventually lose 
the ability to walk, use their 
hands, speak, swallow, and 
breathe.” September 9, 
2015 was the day he was 
diagnosed with ALS. Two 
weeks after diagnosis, Stan 
wrote this entry: 
I was peaceful with receiv-

ing the diagnosis. I felt an 

urgency to move into ac-

tion, to do the things that 

were most important. To do 

important things, not ur-

gent things. Spend time 

with family. Write a testi-

mony for God. Finish the 

barn.  

F i n i s h i n g  W e l l :  
G l i m p s e s  o f  S t a n  M i l l e r ’ s  

D i a r y  

I ns i de  t h i s  i s s ue :  

Welcome to the Team 2 

Birthdays 2 

Skills Validation Day 2 

Volunteer Spotlight: 

Casey Kasper 

3 

Training Tips &  

Reminders 

4 

Volunteer Needs 4 

 

Welcome New     

Volunteers 
4 

Finishing Well,   

Continued 
5 

Finishing Well,   

Continued 
6 

 
 
 
J a n u a r y  2 0 2 0   

Volunteer Newsletter 

Continued on page 5 

PAGE - 46

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Spasticity
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Spasticity
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fasciculation
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fasciculation
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Muscle_atrophy
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Muscle_atrophy
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Shortness_of_breath


W e l c o m e  

t o  t h e  

T e a m  Antoinette Waite 
South Bend RN 

 
 

 

 
 

 

B i r t h d a y s  

1/24  
Frieda Cultice 
1/27  
Chrystal Snow-
Schmatz 
1/28  
Steven Listenberger 
1/29 
Sharon Jennings 
1/29  
Barbara Reasor 
1/31  
Bill Blum 
 
 

1/3  
Jennifer Stanley 
1/5 
Lisa Melin 
1/5  
Norm Woolet 
1/6  
Doug Jaques 
1/7 
Lynn Blessing 
1/7  
Lindsey Mortensen 
1/8  
Kathy Walsh 
 

1/11  
Darlene Nolen 
1/15  
Thomas Wruble 
1/17  
Pam Weinland 
1/20  
Linda Strain 
1/21  
David Ricchiute 
1/22 
Linda McFarland 
1/23  
Jonathan Couri 
 

P a g e  2  

S k i l l s  V a l i d a t i o n  D a y  

Jenifer Bain 
Coding & Verification Billing 
Representative 

 

Ida Holloway-Jordan 
Mishawaka Housekeeper 

 

Regina Linn 
Elkhart IPU RN 

 

Quiona Phillips 
Elkhart IPU CNA 

 

Tracy Plummer 
Mishawaka RN 

 

Diane Revard 
Elkhart IPU PRN RN 

 

Heather Schnick 
LaPorte Patient Care Coordinator 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
Location: Mishawaka Campus 
Time Slots: 30 minute time slots 
Morning time slots are all booked. 
Afternoon time slots are still    
available. 
Lunch Break from 1:00-1:30pm 
 
To schedule your time slot, call or email 
Kristiana Donahue at  
donahuek@cfhcare.org 
Or (574) 286-1198 

Who should attend? 
All Level 3 trained CHC 
volunteers. Those who 
have completed training 
to help patients with per-
sonal care.  
How often do we need to 
be validated? 
Once a year. In 2020, we 
are offering a skills vali-
dation day in January and 
one in the summer. Level 
3 volunteers must attend 
one of these.  

PAGE - 47



V o l u n t e e r  S p o t l i g h t      
C a s e y  K a s p e r ,  E l k h a r t  

Why do you volunteer 
with CHC? 

First and foremost, I'm a 
social worker and felt 
this would be a great 
way to continue helping 
people outside my work 
week, while doing work 
that was different 
enough from the work I 
do. Plus, philosophically, 

What volunteer work do 
you do with CHC? How 
long have you been  a 
volunteer with CHC? 
I volunteer in the Elkhart 
inpatient unit every other 
Friday night and started 
volunteering in the 
spring of 2018.   
 
 
 

Tell us a bit about your 
family. 
I just married my signifi-
cant other of five years, 
Todd, on November 9th. 
We live in Elkhart. He 
has 13 and 15 year old 
daughters who are abso-
lutely delightful and split 
their time between us and 
their mom and stepdad. 
We also have a two year 
old Scottish Terrier 
named Rupert and a 14 
year old grumpy old 
tomcat named Dartanian. 
I'm incredibly close to my 
family. They are some of 
the best and most im-
portant people in my life. 
My parents and maternal 
aunts and uncles live in 
Dowagiac, MI. I also 
have a brother who re-
cently relocated to Bos-
ton, and a sister, who is 
getting her PhD in Lin-
guistics at the University 
of Chicago.  

people in general are far 
too squeamish about 
death and dying, even 
though it's one of life's 
guarantees. Just as I 
would want people to 
have good lives, I also 
think we need to talk 
about what makes for a 
good death. I want to 
make sure individuals 
are able to receive prop-
er end of life care, as 
well as do what I can to 
help their families and 
friends through the 
grieving process. And 
just because it's natural 
does not mean that it is 
easy for the individual or 
their support systems. 
What is your favorite 
food and why? 
Any and all Middle East-
ern food. I lived in the 
Ann Arbor/Detroit area 
for about ten years and 
had regular access to 

some of the best Middle 
Eastern food I've ever 
had. Sadly nothing 
around here quite com-
pares, so I make a point 
to stop by my favorite 
restaurants anytime I'm 
in that area.   
Favorite movie and 
why? 
About Time, a Richard 
Curtis film from 2013 
about a man who learns 
he has the ability to time 
travel on his 21st birth-
day and how he can use 
those abilities to make 
the most out of the time 
he has. My best friend 
and I went to go see it on 
a whim, thinking it was 
going to be a silly ro-
mantic comedy. As it 
turns out it remains one 
of the best movies either 
of us have ever seen. 
 

P a g e  3  

 
 
 
 
“Casey is a busy mom 
and career person who 
takes time out of her 
Friday evening every 
other week to assist at 
our inpatient unit in 
Elkhart. Staff there tell 
me she is a task master 
and she gets the job 
done! She is also very 
compassionate and has 
a way about her that 
eases patients. We are 
so fortunate to have 
Casey on our team!” 
 
Marlane Huber, 

Elkhart Volunteer 

Coordinator 

 

PAGE - 48



T r a i n i n g  T i p s  &  R e m i n d e r s  

Speech, Vision and Hearing 
 
As a patient makes efforts to communicate, caregivers may experience a sense 
of frustration as their speech may become difficult to understand.  The lack of 
understanding may make them feel as though they are not “pleasing” the pa-
tient.  Refrain from asking unnecessary questions of the patient if verbal com-
munication is difficult or impossible. If the caregiver has difficulty understand-
ing a patient’s speech, they need to let the patient know they are having diffi-
culty and it is due to their weakness.  They may want to have a list of basic 
needs that the patient can respond to with “yes” or “no.” 
 
Vision can also fail and patient’s eyes may become dry, sunken or glazed over 
in an apparent stare. If it is apparent that vision is failing, keep the patient well
-informed as to who is present, and of the day and time.  A warm damp cloth 
can be used to remove any eye secretions, and eye drops may be given if nec-
essary.  Keep the room lighting as the patient wishes  
 
The last sense to be lost is hearing, and it may remain acute up until the time 
of death.  Avoid saying anything in the patient’s presence that would make 
him or her feel uncomfortable or uneasy. Reassure the patient that someone 
will always be around to provide their care. Soothing music may be enjoyed, 
as well as conversation from family and friends.  This is an excellent time to 
express love and caring.  Touch is also a good way to be with a patient by giv-
ing a gentle massage or simply holding the patient’s hand. 
 

P a g e  4  

Vo l u n t e e r  

N e e d s  

 
While we are always look-
ing for home visit volun-
teers across the area, we 
also have a need for the 
following: 
 
South Bend 
 Hairdressers 
 Barbers 
 Pet Visitors 
 
Elkhart 
 Hairdressers 
 Barbers 
 
Plymouth 
 Need volunteers to 

help cover the      
Walkerton, North   
Liberty and Culver 
areas! 

 Office Volunteers 
 Veteran Volunteers 
 
LaPorte 
  Any opportunity, but 

especially hospitality 

W e l c o m e  N e w  V o l u n t e e r s  

Help us welcome this new volunteer who finished 
her training in December. Please introduce yourself 
to her as she begins her service with CHC.  

Loukia Verhage 
Mishawaka/LaPorte 

PAGE - 49



P a g e  5  

C o m m e n t s  

f r o m  O u r  

Fa m i l i e s  

 

 

 Some of the nurses went 
the extra mile to make 
sure it was a memorable 
experience. 

 
 This is the third parent 

we’ve used hospice for. 
They’ve always provided 
the utmost care. We felt 
so loved and confident in 
the care.  

 
 The nurses, bath aides, 

volunteers were out-
standing in their care, 
attention and love for my 
husband. We always 
looked forward to their 
outstanding service to us. 
Thanks and love to all. 

 
 The two nurses were 

excellent when offering 
care to my husband. 
They were generous in 
their support of me. The 
chaplain was a big sup-
port spiritually. As a re-
tired minister, I was very 
impressed with the care 
we received.  

 

 
 

 
 

Tonight, I am struggling to 

figure out how to respond 

to death. When I think of all 

of the important things that 

should be done, I realize I 

can never make that hap-

pen. Once you’re sick with 

a disease, it is not the time 

to do extra things. God, I 

need the wisdom to decide 

what things to let go of and 

which things will make the 

biggest difference. Death is 

like life. You need to do 

your best and trust God for 

the rest.  

Life often becomes an end-
less to-do list that can over-
whelm even the most disci-

plined person. Coming to 
the end of life can exacer-
bate the anxiety created by 
the list, but it also has a 
keen way of filtering out 
the unimportant things, 
leaving time for the most 
important. 
Acknowledging the 
“Elephant in the Room” 
Throughout life we strive to 
talk about the important 
things with our loved ones. 
From faith to relationships 
to problems in our society - 
finding a kindred spirit to 
discuss our ideas truly 
helps us feel ready for, con-

Stan and his wife are no 
strangers to loss themselves. 
They built their beautiful fami-
ly with the bittersweet pieces 
of love and heartbreak. They 
had three biological children; 
all of them with significant 
medical needs. Two passed 
away, and Stephanie, lives with 
them still, needing daily care 
and support. They’ve adopted 
six other children, including 
several older ones who had 
moved around quite a bit.  It is 
quite evident that Stan wants to 
pour himself into the lives of 
his children – and realizing his 
“plans” were cut short was 
tough. 
I had this great idea 

about writing letters to 

all the children for the 

important events in 

their lives that I would 

not be around for. You 

cannot take a child fur-

ther than they are emo-

tionally and mentally 

ready for. There is so 

much I would love to 

guide and teach and 

pass on, but they are not ready 

for much of this. So I need to 

move it to a few things that 

they can remember.  

Confronting Death and    
Prioritizing Life 
Stan’s initial prognosis was 
dire, being told he had only a 
few months to live. Soon after 
diagnosis, Stan began noticing 
his physical decline. He was 
put on oxygen almost immedi-
ately and this affected his per-
ception of his days. He quickly 
had to confront the imminent 
possibility of death, and help 
those he loved do the same. 

fident in and content in 
our decisions. It’s no dif-
ferent with acceptance of  
death and dying. Yet find-
ing people to talk to can 
be challenging.  
“I need to talk about 

death and dying. You find 

that death and dying are 

pretty taboo subjects,” 

Stan wrote.  
As ALS ravaged his body, 
his mind was continuing 
to process the all changes 
happening in his life. 
Questions about the future 
swirled in his head. 
How and when will my 

body change? How 

quickly will this af-

fect my independ-

ence? How will this 

affect my relation-

ships? How does one 

finish well? Knowing 

that I’m dying makes 

me feel isolated.  

Stan would be the 
first to express that 
he’s had a wonderful 

support network of family 
and friends. He’s felt truly 
loved and cared for, 
which has helped him 
tremendously. Yet, even 
with a wonderful support 
network and people will-
ing to listen, feelings of 
isolation are often part of 
this final journey. Stan 
shared the often confusing 
balance of encouraging 
his family to continue 
with life as “normal,” 
while daily recognizing 
the reality of his disease. 
Even when he has had 
people that would listen to 
his inner thoughts, he held 

The way you     

approach death 

will be how you 

lived your life. 

Continued from page 1 

Continued on page 6 
PAGE - 50



C h o i c e s  t o  
m a k e  t h e  m o s t  

o f  l i f e . . .  

back some of his deepest. 
This illness was his to face, 
and he didn’t want to bur-
den everyone around him 
with his “elephant.”  
When I did talk about it, I 

did not go into it as deeply 

as my heart would have 

liked. I didn’t want to over-

whelm the people I was 

talking to.  

Living with a terminal ill-

ness can be hard for every-

one. Denial is a very effec-

tive coping skill. But, using 

it indiscriminately isn’t 

healthy. At some point in 

this life and death play, the 

primary actors need to 

admit that everything isn’t 

OK. I get that. But it 

doesn’t mean I understand 

it.  

Many people are uncom-

fortable to talk about death 

and dying. Even the person 

that is dying finds it diffi-

cult to talk about. Maybe it’s 

because these are subjects 

we have never heard dis-

cussed.  

Stan has thought a lot about 
this “elephant.” He’s forced 
to think about it. But in reali-
ty, it’s a topic all of us will 
face at some point. Ignoring 
it doesn’t make it go away. 
In fact, engaging in healthy 
conversations about death 
and dying with those we trust 
may do everyone good. Stan 
mentioned that at times he 
thought there was an 
“elephant” in the room, when 
in fact, it was just his percep-
tion. We may be surprised 
that some people may be 
more open than we realize. 
Stan has thought about how 
to address the difficult topics 
people don’t really want to 
talk about, and came up with 
his own formula. 
Verify that the elephant is 

real. Acknowledge its pres-

ence. Consider timing. Make 

a plan. Have a direct, honest, 

detailed conversation. 

Gradual Detachment 
ALS is a journey of detach-

ment. From what I could 

once do, along with anticipa-

tion and preparation for 

what I will not be able to do 

in the near future.  

Stan’s progression with ALS 
took an immediate toll, but 
was also unusual. Soon after 
his diagnosis he noticed a 
decline. His voice became so 
soft it was difficult to under-
stand him. He couldn’t roll 
over in bed anymore and was 
only able to swallow soft 
foods. Macaroni became a 
staple diet. Due to the rapid 
progression, and his doctor’s 
prognosis that he wouldn’t 
make it to February 2016, 
Stan had to hastily prepare 
his heart and mind.  
Then in January 2016, all 
those abilities came back to 
him. He started to roll over in 
bed, he could communicate 
clearly and eat anything he 
wanted. It’s been like a mira-
cle. However, though Stan 
doesn’t know the timeline, he 
knows the probability that 
those losses will return are 
somewhere on the horizon.  
I recognize the fact that I 

have not even really started 

my journey with ALS yet. 

Everything can be taken 

away from me. But one thing, 

the last of human credence, 

to choose one’s attitude in 

any given set of circumstanc-

es. I was determined not to 

let ALS touch my soul or 

spirit.  

While Stan realizes that ALS 
will take things away from 

him, it has also given him 
something else. He has 
gained some new friends on 
this journey. The staff from 
Center for Hospice Care, 
especially his nurse Jessica, 
who has been with him since 
he started care, have been 
some of those new friends.  
I would have to say my life 

has been rich and full and 

rewarding these last several 

years. I have probably had 

more, really deep, meaning-

ful conversations in the last 

several years than I have had 

for a lot of years. I find that 

my diagnosis brings people 

to me that want to talk about 

deeper things. And it gives 

me a great opportunity to get 

to learn their heart and to 

share my heart.  

Finishing Well 
Jessica and Stan have been 
talking about what it means 
to finish well.  
What does it look like to fin-

ish well? Jessica helped me 

with that a lot. I realized that 

what I really wanted to do is 

live well. Because if you live 

well, you finish well. It needs 

to be a changing target. As I 

have lost ability, living well 

is fleshed out in a different 

way.  

Stan continues to encourage 
all of us to live well all along 
the way. Why put off the 
good things that we could do 
today? Why wait for retire-
ment to take that dream trip? 
Prioritize the “important” 
things, not the “urgent” 
things.  
The way you approach death 

will be how you lived your 

life. 

 

Continued from page 5 

PAGE - 51



replace the current seven
-bed Hospice House in-
patient center the agency 
has operated for the past 
23 years in Roseland. 
Wargo said once the new 
center opens, Roseland 
patients and staff will be 
transferred to 
Mishawaka. 
The Roseland Hospice 
House will be converted 
into the new home of the 
center’s Milton Adult 
Day Services, serving 
people with dementia. 
The center also runs a 
similar seven-bed Hos-
pice House at the eastern 
end of Elkhart County 
that 

By Greg Swiercz South 
Bend Tribune 
 
Published November 22, 
2019 
 
MISHAWAKA — A 
new 12-bed inpatient 
center is expected to 
open early next year at 
the Center for Hospice 
Care’s Mishawaka cam-
pus. 
The 17,000-square-foot 
facility, called the Ernes-
tine M. Raclin House, is 
built on Comfort Drive 
just east of the organiza-
tion’s current buildings 
along the St. Joseph Riv-
er east of Central Park. 

The facility should begin 
accepting hospice pa-
tients early in 2020, ac-
cording to Mike Wargo, 
vice president and chief 
operating officer for the 
Hospice Foundation. 
While construction 
crews put finishing 
touches on what officials 
describe as a “classic 
contemporary Craftsman
-style” facility, Wargo 
said the center is the cul-
mination of a five-year 
fundraising campaign. 
Donors, staff and agency 
officials dedicated the 
new center earlier this 
week. 
The 12-bed facility will 

N e w  i n p a t i e n t  c e n t e r  f o r  
h o s p i c e  p a t i e n t s  t o  o p e n  
s o o n  i n  M i s h a w a k a  

I ns i de  t h i s  i s s ue :  

Welcome to the Team 2 

Birthdays 2 

In Loving Memory 2 

9 Tips for Visiting 

Someone in Hospice 

2 

Volunteer Spotlight: 

John Harringer 

3 

Mark Your Calendars 4 

Training Tips &  

Reminders 

4 

Volunteer             

Needs 

4 

 

Training Tips &  

Reminders 

5 

Welcome New     

Volunteers 
5 

Comments from Our 

Families 
5 

New inpatient center 

Continued 
6 

 
 
 
F e b r u a r y  2 0 2 0   

Volunteer Newsletter 

Continued on page 6 

PAGE - 52



W e l c o m e  

t o  t h e  

T e a m  

Antoinette Waite 
South Bend RN 

 
 

 

 
 

 

B i r t h d a y s  

2/21  

Mary Jane Lawson 

2/21  

Fred Longenecker 

2/23  

Larry Brucker 

2/23  

Martha Lewallen 

2/24 

Elizabeth Kreskai 

 

 

2/6  

Pat Langfeldt 

2/10  

Earl Metzler 

2/11  

Tammy Jacobi 

2/13  

Janet Gruwell 

2/13 

Carl Mayfield 

2/13  

Joyce Metzler-Smith 

2/15  

Marlane Huber 

2/15  

Ann Hughes 

2/19 

Donna Jewell 

2/20  

Bob Evans 

2/20  

Anila Mondabaugh 

2/21  

Kathy Bowlby 

P a g e  2  

9  T i p s  f o r  V i s i t i n g  
S o m e o n e  i n  H o s p i c e  

Julianne Havens 
Mishawaka RN 

 

Jackie Hostetler 
Elkhart RN 

I n  L o v i n g  

M e m o r y  

 
Our condolences and 
heartfelt sympathies go out 
to the following CHC vol-
unteers who lost a loved 
one recently.  
 
Bill Blum, Mishawaka  
Sister in Law, Mary Blum  
Saturday, December 21, 
2019 
 
Connie Nyerges, 
Mishawaka  
Son, Randy Bazyk  
Wednesday,  January 8, 
2020 

By Jennifer Modlinger 
 
No matter your feelings 
about extravagant wed-
dings and the British 
royal family, I think we 
can all agree that they 
did a beautiful mitzvah 
by turning the flowers 
from Prince Harry and 
Meghan Markle’s wed-
ding into bouquets for 
hospice patients. 
And whether or not you 
are of royal blood, visit-
ing a loved one who has 
entered hospice care can 
be a nerve-wracking 
experience. But it 
doesn’t have to be. 
There are things you can 
do to bring comfort and 
joy to a person in hos-
pice. We pulled together 
the following tips from 
the hospice nurses, so-
cial workers, and clergy 

at MJHS Health System.  
1. Timing is              
Everything. 
Plan the time of your 
visit carefully. Find out 
when your friend or rel-
ative is feeling most 
energetic: morning, mid-
day, or night? When do 
medications need to be 
taken? Speak with the 
patient, family caregiv-
er, hospice staff, or close 
friend to determine the 
best time of day to visit. 
And make sure to dou-
ble check that it is still a 
good day and time to 
visit before heading 
over. 
2. Comfort Food — Or 
Not 
Don’t just show up with 
your specialty brisket or 
noodle kugel without 
checking in first. Find 
out if there are any die-

tary restrictions, or if the 
patient is craving something. 
If he or she is on a liquid 
diet, you could bring a 
smoothie or milkshake. If 
martinis were a favorite but 
alcohol is no longer an op-
tion, make a toast over water 
in martini glasses. Some-
times smelling a favorite 
food can be a comfort, even 
if it can no longer be eaten 
— the aroma of a freshly 
baked challah or a fragrant 
pot of chicken soup can 
bring back beautiful memo-
ries even if they can’t be tast-
ed. But again, ask first. 
3. Technology Can be a 
Powerful Tool 
Even if the patient can no 
longer travel, he or she can 
still be part of a family sim-
cha. Facetime, Skype, and 
live streaming are all ways to 
help someone be a virtual 
guest at a Bat Mitzvah, a bris  

Continued on page 6 

PAGE - 53

http://www.scarymommy.com/royal-wedding-bouquets-hospice/
http://www.scarymommy.com/royal-wedding-bouquets-hospice/
https://www.mjhs.org/


V o l u n t e e r  S p o t l i g h t      
J o h n  H a r r i n g e r ,   C a m p  E v e r g r e e n  

Why do you volunteer 
with CHC? 

It makes me feel good 
doing things for others.  
I get to see the differ-
ence in the kids’ lives 
that go through camp.  I 
have received cards 
from some of the kids 
that I was a buddy for 
and they have told me 

What volunteer work 
do you do with CHC? 
How long have you 
been  a volunteer with 
CHC? 
I have been a camp 
buddy for Camp Ever-
green for 16 years.  I 
also volunteer for the 
Camp Workshop.  This 
will be the second year 
in September.  

finished high school 
after boot camp.   After 
my military service I 
came back to South 
Bend and worked at 
Bendix.  
 
Where in the world 
would you like to go? 
The good ole’ USA is 
good enough for me.  I 
did some traveling 
while in the Marine 
Corp.  I did a tour of 
duty in Japan in 1964 
and was able to see the 
1964 Olympics there.  I 
did a tour in Vietnam in 
1966.   
 
Hobbies? 
I enjoy photography.  I 
like to take photos of 
historical places and 
also scenery.  

how I made a difference 
in their lives. 
 
What is your favorite 
food? 
1st is blueberry pie, 2nd 
banana cream pie.  I 
like the taste of both.  I 
like the fact that blue-
berry pie has antioxi-
dants in the blueberries. 
 
What is your favorite 
movie? 
I like science fiction 
movies.  Whatever 
scares me to death.   
Anything with martian 
invaders.  I also like 
John Wayne westerns.  
 
Favorite music? 
I like any kind of music 
that makes sense.  I like 
big band music because 
it is soothing.  I like 
rock and roll, especially 

Elvis Presley.  I like 
country music.  It’s just 
good music.  I like John 
Denver and Johnny 
Cash in that order. 
 
What do you do in your 
spare time? 
I’m retired now so I 
don’t have a clock.  I do 
whatever I want to do.  
If I see something that 
sounds interesting I’ll 
just pack a bag and go. 
 
Where are you original-
ly from? 
Louisville, KY.  My 
family moved to South 
Bend when I was 3-4 
years old.  I attended 
Central High in South 
Bend.  I joined the Ma-
rine Corp when I was in 
high school.  Paris, 
South Carolina is where 
I went to boot camp. I 

P a g e  3  

“John does a great job 
capturing meaningful 
moments on film as a 
camp photographer 
volunteer.  His talent as 
a photographer 
provides campers and 
volunteers with special 
keepsakes of their 
Camp Evergreen 
experience.” 
 
Kim Mathews, 

Camp Evergreen 

Director 

 

PAGE - 54



M a r k  Yo u r  

C a l e n d a r s  

 
Volunteer Recognition 
Luncheon  
Tuesday, April 21, 2020  
11:30am-1:00pm  
The Brick  
1145 Northside Blvd.  
South Bend, IN  
 
Mandatory Annual          
In-service  
Tuesday, June 9, 2020  
More details to follow.  
 
 
 

T r a i n i n g  T i p s  &  R e m i n d e r s  

Level 3 Training Now Available Online 
We are pleased to announce that we now have all of our volunteer training 
available online—all three levels. Level 3 still has a face-to-face and hands on 
teaching and validation component.   
Some current volunteers had mentioned a desire to do Level 3 once it was 
available online. If you would like to move forward with your training and 
increase your level to a Level 3, please contact Kristiana Donahue and she can 
inform you of what steps need to be taken.  
donahuek@cfhcare.org or 574-286-1198. 

P a g e  4  

Vo l un t e e r  Ne e d s  
We are always looking for Home Visit Volunteers across the area. If you 
are willing to be a Home Visit Volunteer and need to complete Level 3 
training, keep in mind that we can increase your training at any time.  
 
Please take a look at the needs the VCs have shared. If you are willing to 
take any of these opportunities, let your VC know. If you know anyone 
who would like to become a volunteer, let Kristiana Donahue know. We 
have a need for the following: 
 
South Bend 
 Hairdresser, Barbers, Pet Visitors 
Elkhart 
 Reception Volunteer, Tuck-In Volunteer, Hairdressers, Barbers 
 Volunteers willing to help with household chores (cleaning, laundry, 

dishes, vacuuming, etc.). 
 Volunteers willing to travel to Nappanee, Middlebury, Goshen, 

Wakarusa, Shipshewana and Warsaw 
Plymouth 
 Hairdressers, Barbers, Veteran Volunteers, Office, Hospitality, 

Tuck-In 
LaPorte 
 Any opportunity is needed in LaPorte 
  Hospitality Volunteers who are willing to travel throughout the county 
 

PAGE - 55



P a g e  5  

C o m m e n t s  

f r o m  O u r  

Fa m i l i e s  

 

 

 I am a physician and 
consider the Hospice 
Care exceptional. All of 
our meds were tended to 
in a kind and efficient 
manner.  

 
 Our experience was as 

perfect as we could have 
hoped for. They walked 
us through each and eve-
ry point of my father’s 
care. We couldn’t have 
done it without every-
one! Thank you. 

 
 The nurse was an angel 

to me. There was perfect 
communication. We 
worked well together. 
Mom was well taken 
care of and looked for-
ward to her coming.  

 
 I am so thankful for your 

support services. The 
death we experienced 
was expected and I was 
prepared for it. I believe 
many families are 
“saved” by your support 
and services. Keep up 
the great work!  

 

 
 

 

W e l c o m e  N e w  V o l u n t e e r s  

Help us welcome these new volunteers who finished their training this month. 
Please introduce yourself to these volunteers as they begin their service with 
CHC.  

Theresa Gross 
LaPorte 

Brendan Fitzpatrick 
Mishawaka 

Andrea DeSonia 
Elkhart 

Left to Right 
 
Angela Lewellen 
Plymouth 
 

Cara Lewellen 
Plymouth  

T r a i n i n g  T i p s  &  R e m i n d e r s  

South Bend/Mishawaka Volunteers 
Reminder! Any Mishawaka/South Bend volunteer that sends in patient time sheets, 
please remember to throw away any return envelopes that have a South Bend PO Box 
address on them. Do not use them anymore.  
If you need new envelopes, please contact Debra Mayfield and she will send some to 
you. The new envelopes have a Kalamzoo, MI PO Box on them. Please check your 
supply.  

PAGE - 56



C h o i c e s  t o  
m a k e  t h e  m o s t  

o f  l i f e . . .  

will remain open. 
Hospice care involves 
medical care, pain man-
agement, and emotional 
and spiritual support for 
patients and their fami-
lies when a patient faces 
a terminal illness. 
All 12 rooms at the new 
Hospice House face the 
St. Joseph River. Wargo 
said patios and common 
areas were designed to 
allow patients and fami-
ly members to take in 
the river setting. 
Patients who will make 
use of the center fall into 
several categories. War-
go said people dis-
charged from hospitals 
can be admitted if the 

patient’s condition pre-
vents them from going 
home. 
Others admitted to the 
center can be people who 
are having acute medical 
issues. Wargo said often 
these inpatients may be 
stabilized over the course 
of a several-day stay. 
The center also offers pri-
mary caregivers of hospice 
patients respite. Patients 
can be admitted if caregiv-
ers are going out of town 
or need a break. 
Wargo said the average 
stay for admitted patients 
to the inpatient center is 5 
1/2 days, and all will have 
the full array of hospice 
services offered there. 
National statistics provid-

ed by the National Hos-
pice and Palliative Care 
Organization for 2018 
show that while 80% of 
Medicare hospice patients 
die at home (48.2%) or in 
a nursing facility (31.8%), 
only 11.2% die in inpa-
tient hospice facilities. 
About 86% of annual rev-
enue from the nonprofit 
Center for Hospice Care 
comes from Medicare 
through the hospice bene-
fit, with 1% from Medi-
caid. Private insurance 
accounts for 6%, while 
fundraising fills in the re-
maining 6%, Wargo said. 
Features in the new center 
are designed to accommo-
date the patients and fami-
lies. A large common area 

isn’t about you. Visiting a 
loved one who is in hos-
pice care for a life-limiting 
condition is going to bring 
up all sorts of emotions, 
and it may be hard to 
squish those emotions 
down — particularly if 
you aren’t having the kind 
of visit you envisioned. In 
the end, remember that 
you are doing a huge mitz-
vah — even if you aren’t 
bringing a leftover bou-
quet from the royal wed-
ding. Like so many things 
in life, it’s about showing 
up and showing you care. 
 
https://www.kveller.com/9
-tips-for-visiting-someone-
in-hospice/  

Continued from page 1 

 
or a wedding. 
4. Think Twice About 
Bringing Decorations  
Fragrant flowers are beautiful 
but can be majorly problem-
atic for someone with respira-
tory issues; a giant bunch of 
balloons might crowd a small 
room. Find out if there is 
something particularly mean-
ingful — and not too large — 
that you can bring. Home-
made cards and drawings, as 
well as family photos, are 
always a good choice.  
5. Don’t Bring an            
Entourage 
If you planned to come alone, 
don’t decide on a plus-one — 
or two! — at the last minute. 
Additional guests can be 
overwhelming and can make 
a room feel crowded. 
 

6. Children are a Blessing 
— Usually 
Kids can bring lots of energy 
and joy into the room — but 
only if that energy and joy 
will not overwhelm the pa-
tient. Exuberant hugs and 
kisses may be welcomed, or 
they can exacerbate existing 
pain. Let the patient be your 
guide. 
7. Keep an Eye on the 
Clock 
Don’t overstay your welcome 
— patients often tire easily. 
You may be having a lovely 
visit and dreading what could 
be a final farewell, but be 
mindful of any cues you may 
be getting from the patient or 
family members. 
8. No Surprises 
This isn’t the time to try and 
mend fences or settle a long-
standing family feud unless 

specifically requested by the 
patient. He or she may have 
already made her peace with 
whatever quarrel or drama 
happened in the past, and 
resurfacing matters may do 
more harm than good. 
9. Don’t Take It Personally  
Don’t take offense if a pa-
tient doesn’t express delight 
over a thoughtful gift or 
painstakingly crafted card or 
drawing. He or she may be 
too tired to be effusive about 
the gift. The same goes for 
not talking during the visit, 
ending the visit suddenly, or 
seeming apathetic about a 
holiday or celebration.  
The bottom line when visit-
ing someone in hospice is to 
let the patient be your guide, 
to be present and in the mo-
ment, and remember that it 

houses a large kitchen with 
two refrigerators and two 
large living spaces that can 
handle multiple families of 
patients. 
A four-season room on the 
west side of the building will 
have furnishings that resem-
ble a patio and the view will 
offer people a vista of the 
park and river. 
Rooms for teens, for children 
and even for a future therapy 
dog are planned. 
“The setting here is so 
unique,” Wargo said. “We 
have large living spaces. 
This (facility) provides spac-
es for all to feel comforta-
ble.” 
 

Continued from page 2 

PAGE - 57



Center for Hospice Care 
Committees of the Board of Directors 

 
The following committees of the CHC Board of Directors are currently available for 
board member participation. Contact the Chair of the Board if you are interested in 
joining one of these committees.  
 
Bylaws Committee 
The Bylaws Committee shall consist of the Executive Committee of the Corporation and 
other appointees by the Chair of the Board of Directors in such numbers as they deem 
necessary. It shall have the responsibility of reviewing the Corporation’s Bylaws at least 
once every three years.  
            
Milton Adult Day Services Advisory Committee 
The MADS Advisory Committee shall consist of appointees by the Chair of the Board of 
Directors and include caregiver and community representation. It shall have the 
responsibility to review the scope of services, quality of services, policies and 
procedures, service reports, evaluation findings, public relations/information materials, 
marketing/fundraising activities, and grant opportunities. The committee meets twice a 
year.   
 
Nominating Committee 
The Nominating Committee shall consist of the Executive Committee of the Corporation 
and other appointees by the Chair of the Board of Directors in such numbers as they 
deem necessary.  It shall have the responsibility of nominating candidates for positions 
on the Board, as well as for officers of the Board of Directors. The committee generally 
meets two to three times a year.  
  
Personnel Committee 
The Personnel Committee shall consist of the Executive Committee and other appointees 
by the Chair of the Board of Directors, and be chaired by the Chair of the Board of 
Directors.  This committee shall concern itself with the review and recommendations for 
approval of the Personnel Policies governing the staff of the Corporation. This 
committee meets at least biannually to review the Human Resources Manual and as 
needed. 
 
Special Committees 
Special committees may be appointed by the Chair of the Board of Directors as the need 
arises. Some of these committees include the Helping Hands Award Dinner Committee, 
and the Walk/Bike for Hospice Committee.   
 
 

PAGE - 58



Page 1 of 3 

Center for Hospice Care 
Conflict of Interest Policy 

 
Article 1 
Purpose 
The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect the Center for Hospice Care’s (CHC) 
interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the 
private interest of an officer or director of CHC or might result in a possible excess benefit 
transaction.  This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state or federal 
laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations. 
 
Article II 
Definitions 
1. Interested Person – Any director, principal, officer, or member of a committee with 

governing board delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined 
below, is an interested person. 

 
2. Financial Interest – A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, 

through business, investment, or family:  
a. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which CHC has a transaction or 

arrangement, 
b. A compensation arrangement with CHC or with any entity or individual with which CHC 

has a transaction or arrangement, or 
c. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any 

entity or individual with which CHC is negotiating a transaction or arrangement. 
 
Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not 
insubstantial. 
A financial interest in not necessarily a conflict of interest.  Under Article III, Section 2, a person 
who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing 
board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists. 
 
Article III  
Procedures 
1. Duty to Disclose – In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested 

person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to 
disclose all material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing board 
delegated powers considering the proposed transaction and arrangement. 

 
2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists – After disclosure of the financial interest 

and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, he/she shall leave 
the governing board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is 
discussed and voted upon.  The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a 
conflict of interest exists. 

 
 

PAGE - 59



Page 2 of 3 

3.  Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest – 
a. An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board or committee 

meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion 
of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of 
interest. 

b. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a 
disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction 
or arrangement. 

c. After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine 
whether CHC can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or 
arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest. 

d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under 
circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee 
shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or 
arrangement is in CHC’s best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and 
reasonable.  In conformity with the above determination it shall make its decision as to 
whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement. 

 
4.  Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy 

a. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed 
to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis 
for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to 
disclose. 

b. If, after hearing the member’s response and after making further investigation as 
warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the 
member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take 
appropriate disciplinary and corrective action. 

 
Article IV 
Records of Proceedings 
 
1.  Records of Proceedings – The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board 

delegated powers shall contain: 
a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial 

interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the 
financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, 
and the governing board’s or committee’s decision as to whether a conflict of interest in 
fact existed. 

b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the 
transaction or arrangements, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to 
proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

 
Article V 
Compensation 
1.  A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, 

from CHC for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to the member’s 
compensation. 

PAGE - 60



Page 3 of 3 

2.  A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and 
who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from CHC for services is precluded from 
voting on matters pertaining to that member’s compensation. 

3.  No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes 
compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from CHC, 
either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee 
regarding compensation. 

 
Article VI 
Annual Statements 
1.  Annual Statements – Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with 

governing board delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person: 
a. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy, 
b. Has read and understands the policy, 
c. Has agreed to comply with the policy, and 
d. Understands CHC is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must 

engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempted 
purposes. 

 
Article VII 
Periodic Reviews 
1.  Periodic Reviews – To ensure CHC operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes 

and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews 
shall be conducted.  The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following 
subjects: 
a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent 

survey information and the result of arm’s length bargaining. 
b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations 

conform to CHC’s written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment 
or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in 
inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

 
Article VIII 
Use of Outside Experts 
1.  Use of Outside Experts – When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Article 

VII, CHC may, but need not, use outside advisors.  If outside experts are used, their use shall 
not relieve the governing board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are 
conducted. 

 
 
_________________________________________    ___________________ 
Signature          Date 
 
_________________________________________ 
Print Name 

2010 

PAGE - 61



Center for Hospice Care 
Goals for Calendar Year 2019 

Updated 01/14/2020 
Goal A:  Enhance Patient Care 
 

Category Status Goal 

Administration Not Met 
Not Met 
 
Met 
Met 

1. Review all commercial insurance plans for current rates, assignability, and discounts. 
2. Review all job descriptions to insure they are accurate for current practices, particularly as the organization has 

grown and added new entities with overlapping staff.   
3. Begin the process of redomesticating GPIC from New York to Indiana. 
4. Begin the repurpose of 111 Sunnybrook for Milton Adult Day Services.  

Admissions Met 
Met 
In Process 
In Process 
Met 
Met 
Met 

Met 
 
Met 

1. Increase same day referral/admissions to 55%. 
2. Increase admission RN PA to Admission conversion rate to 72%. 
3. Ensure 100% of admission nurses complete Pediatric ELNEC. 
4. Have 75% of Admission RNs complete or are working to complete CHPN. 
5. Maintain admission medication charting compliance 97% or greater. 
6. Continue tracking PA to Admission time, as well as continue to track referral to PA time tracking. 
7. Continue tracking live discharges, reasons for discharge, and readmission rate. 
8. Implement training sessions quarterly to educate Admission Representatives and RNs to overcome barriers to 

admissions. 
9. Update intake form to improve triage at referral level.  

Volunteers Met 
Met 
Met 
Met 
Met 
Met 

1. Pursue new volunteer opportunities – Pet Peace of Mind. 
2. Expand volunteer services provided to veteran patients and families – Level 5 Partners Activities. 
3. Recruitment, training, and placement of LaPorte area volunteers. 
4. Create targeted orientation classes for online module: veterans, hair dressers, pet visitor, etc. 
5. Develop a minimum of one training option for current volunteers for online module. 
6. Continue to evaluate and refine the annual skills validation process for Level 3 volunteers.  

Nursing Met 
Met 

1. Establish Nurse Preceptor Program. 
2. Identify strategies to promote improved wound assessments and documentation. 

PAGE - 62



Goals for Calendar Year 2019 
Updated 01/14/2020 

 

Page - 2 

Category Status Goal 

In Process 
Not Doing 
 
Met 
Met 
Met 
Met 

3. Identify strategies and tools to improve and streamline the IDT process through all branches. 
4. Design and implement a “Hospice Language” to ensure all staff are presenting, responding, and training families 

and caregivers in a similar fashion. 
5. Establish a CHC new orientation program, including all departments. 
6. Review and update policies and procedures for Hospice and Home Health. 
7. Increase CHPN certification by five registered nurses. 
8. Review and implement an Action Plan to address the 2018 Employee Satisfaction Survey related to nursing 

strengths and weaknesses.  

Bereavement Met 
 
Met 
 
Met 

1. Create an admission packet tailored to the type of death/who died for new bereaved counseling clients, including 
general grief information, grief services booklet, online resources, booklists, etc. 

2. Continue to improve bereavement counseling support for Veterans by having current bereavement counselors 
complete Tier Two and Tier Three Star Behavioral Health Providers Training, and have any newly hired 
bereavement counselors complete Tier One as trainings are available. 

3. Explore providing group bereavement services to young adults, 18 to 24 years old. 

Social Work Met 
Met 
Met 
Met 

1. Create and implement an educational training plan to increase awareness of cultural competencies. 
2. Create and implement a training plan for social workers and RNs to increase awareness of abuse and neglect. 
3. Identify strategies for ongoing assessment for anticipatory grief with patients and families. 
4. Identify and implement an assessment tool for anxiety and stress for patients and families.  

Chaplains Met 
Met 
 

Met 
 
Met 

1. Update the Chaplain Care plan template in Cerner. 
2. Look into the possibility of hosting local ministerial association meetings at the Mishawaka Campus and Elkhart 

office. 
3. Provide education to nursing, including IPU staff, social work, and bereavement departments via team meetings 

regarding the chaplain’s scope of practice. 
4. Host a Trauma Informed Care Seminar with Chaplain Gregg Fry from Oaklawn Psychiatric Center for patient 

care staff.  

Medical Directors Met 
Met 
In Process 

1. Assist in recruitment of one more HPM physician.  
2. Assist in recruitment of additional MD/DO/NPs to offload face-to-face visits. 
3. Complete original COTIs within 19 days on average. 

PAGE - 63



Goals for Calendar Year 2019 
Updated 01/14/2020 

 

Page - 3 

Category Status Goal 
Met 
In Process 
Not Met 

4. Fully implement the relationship with the Elkhart Clinic.  
5. Increase Palliative Care program at the Center for Palliative Care clinic. 
6. Establish professional relationship with Dr. John Mulder’s Grand Rapids Hospice and Palliative Medicine 

Fellowship program with opportunity for Fellow rotations at CHC.  

 
Goal B:  Position for Future Growth   

Category Status Goal 

Administration Met 
Met  
Met 

1. Perform cost-benefit analysis to determine best options for Mishawaka Campus security and implement. 
2. Revise Mishawaka Campus policies and procedures manual. 
3. HF staff cross-functional training and organizational development program.  

Mishawaka 
Campus & 
Regional 
Expansion 

Met 
Met 
Met 
In Process 
In Process 
Met  
Met 

1. Construct first Cedar Street home to be sold (two-story).  
2. Design Mishawka Campus landscaping master plan.  
3. Complete construction on Clinical Staff Building. 
4. Design and begin construction on new Milton facility.  
5. Complete construction on Ernestine M. Raclin House.  
6. Successfully transition Roseland staff and operations to Mishawaka Campus.  
7. Campaign Celebration/Ribbon-Cutting.  

Global Partners 
in Care 

Not Doing 
Met 

1. Release five-year Strategic Plan. 
2. Identify external sources of funding.  

PCAU Met 
Met 
In Process 
In Process 
Met 

1. Review and revise Road to Hope sponsorship guidelines.  
2. Publish 10-year PCAU report.  
3. Devise a strategy for Road to Hope Fund’s long-term sustainability.  
4. Revise Road to Hope Fund website.  
5. Work with PCAU to finalize establishment of a DCPC program at Mulago School of Nursing and Midwifery.  

PAGE - 64



Goals for Calendar Year 2019 
Updated 01/14/2020 

 

Page - 4 

Category Status Goal 

Education 
 
 
 
 

Met 
In Process 
Met 
 
Met 
 

Met 
In Process 
Met 
 
 

Met 
 
Met 

1. Roll-out new Center for Education and Advance Care Planning website.  
2. Develop branded recruiting materials to market the Vera Z. Dwyer Fellowship to area physicians.  
3. Certify at least two HF staff members as facilitators and integrate Honoring Choices Indiana-NC into 

community education curriculum. 
4. Investigate opportunities to use Okuyamba and Road to Hope for educational and fundraising purposes (called 

“Distribution” in 2018 goals). 
5. Work with IUSM-SB to develop plan to incorporate Hospice and Palliative Care education in the curriculum.  
6. Develop a medical student internship program with IUSM-SB. 
7. Work closely with HCIN-NC board to develop fundraising strategies, marketing plan, and implementation of 

facilitator training throughout the community.  
8. Work with IU South Bend to hire an endowed chair in Palliative Care and begin implementation of Palliative 

Care Certification Program.  
9. Leverage the Leighton Foundation challenge grant for palliative care to support CHC’s palliative care priorities.  

 

Goal C:  Maintain Economic Strength 

Category Status Goal 

Fund Raising and 
Stewardship 

Met 
Met 
Met  
In Process 
In Process 
In Process 
Met 
Met 
Met 
Met 

1. Raise remaining $1.3M Crossroads Campaign capital fundraising goal.  
2. Wrap-up Volunteer portion of the Crossroads Campaign.  
3. Complete targeted Physician component to support Crossroads Campaign.  
4. Kamm Society Rollout.  
5. Post-Campaign Fundraising Plan. 
6. Pursue HC Foundation of LaPorte County opportunities.  
7. Raise remaining $600,000 to complete Dwyer match for HPM Fellowship. 
8. Develop and initiate a Milton Adult Day Care fundraising plan.  
9. Optimize Bloomerang for online fundraising.  
10. Optimize Bloomerang for donor email campaigns.   

PAGE - 65



Goals for Calendar Year 2019 
Updated 01/14/2020 

 

Page - 5 

Goal D:  Continue Building Brand Identification 

Category Status Goal 

HF Marketing In Process 
In Process 
In Process 

1. Complete Hospice Foundation branding documents.  
2. Develop revised social media strategy.  
3. Develop a comprehensive PR and communications plan for HF.  

CHC Marketing  Met 
 
 

Met 
Not Doing 
Not Met 
Met 
 
 
Met 
In Process 
In Process 

1. Attain Level 5 of the We Honor Veterans program: 
(a)  Recruit Community Partners 

(b) Incorporate Vietnam War Commemoration into WHV events.  
2. Focus on ERs as hospice referral sources. 
3. Create materials that focus on Home Health in SNFs. 
4. Increase referrals by 5% (2,460). 
5. Convert CHC and MADS websites to WordPress with branding like FoundationForHospice.org: 

(a) Focus on current most visited pages. 
(b) Make user friendly. 

6.  Increase ECF admissions by 5%. 
7. Help establish and promote Pet Peace of Mind. 
8. Create virtual tours of Esther’s House and Raclin House.   

 

PAGE - 66



Center for Hospice Care 
Goals for Calendar Year 2020 

Updated 02/06/20 
Goal A:  Enhance Patient Care 
 

Category Status Goal 

Administration  1. Review all commercial insurance plans for current rates, assignability, and discounts. 
2. Review all job descriptions to insure they are accurate for current practices, particularly as the organization has 

grown and added new entities with overlapping staff.    
3. Branding and marketing home health as Palliative Care.  
4. 24/7 QA monitoring and correction of errors. 
5. Successful move from South Bend IPU and opening of Raclin House. 
6. Significantly more frequent PR on everything we do. 
7. Begin the expansion of Milton Adult Day Services at the Sunnybrook property.  

Admissions  1. Ensure 100% of admission nurses complete Pediatric ELNEC. 
2. Have 75% of Admission RNs complete or are working to complete CHPN. 
3. Create and implement an expedited process for admitting GIP patients from hospitals to our Inpatient Units. 
4. Increase conversion rate to 72%. 
5. Increase census in long-term care facilities by 8%.  

Volunteers  1. Launch Pet Peace of Mind.  
2. Recruitment, training, and placement of La Porte area volunteers.  
3. Create targeted orientation classes for online module: veterans, hairdressers, pet visitor, etc.  
4. Develop a minimum of one training option for current volunteers for online module.  
5. Recruitment of volunteers in rural areas. 
6. Explore group project ideas for outside volunteers.  

Nursing  1. Maintain or increase all CAHPS scores to 90% or above. 
2. Collaborate with the Alzheimer’s Association to offer a Dementia certification program to the RNs, LPNs, and 

CNAs.  
3. Establish criteria for staff to attend educational programs through criteria-based selection process in addition to 

NHPCO webinars. 

PAGE - 67



Goals for Calendar Year 2020 
Updated 02/06/20 

 

Page - 2 

Category Status Goal 
4. Develop an ongoing program for the IPU to maintain current competencies and skill sets.  
5. Identify strategies and tools to improve and streamline the IDT process throughout the agency.   

Bereavement  1. Investigate ways to improve emotional support after death for primary caregivers and collaborate with social 
work and chaplaincy to address CAHPS survey results in that area. 

2. Review bereavement patient care policies to confirm, and update where appropriate, that the policies reflect the 
current procedures for addressing bereavement needs while the patient is alive and post death. 

3. Continue to improve bereavement counseling support for Veterans by having current bereavement counselors 
complete Tier Three Star Behavioral Health Providers Training and have any newly hired bereavement 
counselors complete Tier One and Tier Two as trainings are available.  

Social Work  1. Investigate ways to improve emotional support after death for primary caregivers and collaborate with 
bereavement and chaplaincy to address CAHPS survey results in that area. 

2. Work with bereavement on the review of bereavement patient care policies to confirm, and update where 
appropriate, that the policies reflect the current procedures for addressing bereavement needs while the patient is 
alive. 

3. Review current social work care plans in Cerner and update where appropriate. 
4. Have social workers attend the first level of Star Behavioral Training in relationship to working with veterans 

and mental health as trainings are available.  

Chaplains  1. Investigate ways to improve emotional support after death for primary caregivers and collaborate with social 
work and bereavement to address CAHPS survey results in that area. 

2. Explore ways to increase local faith communities’ awareness and utilization of CHC resources. 
3. Review, update, and educate on the spiritual screening section of the CHC Hospice Admission Outline and CHC 

Comprehensive Admission Outline. 
4. Use Spiritual Care Week (last full week in October 2020) as a time to educate staff on spirituality and spiritual 

care in fun, interactive, and thought-provoking ways.  

Medical Staff  1. Establish a professional relationship with Dr. John Mulder’s Hospice and Palliative Care Fellowship Program in 
Grand Rapids, Michigan to begin Fellow training rotation at CHC. 

2. Facilitate relationships with local hospital physicians and inpatient care teams to increase referrals to our IPUs.  
3. Restructure face-to-face visits to improve physician productivity. 
4. Assist in recruitment of an H&PM physician to be responsible for developing the Center for Palliative Care. 

PAGE - 68



Goals for Calendar Year 2020 
Updated 02/06/20 

 

Page - 3 

Category Status Goal 
5. Minimize the backlog of COTIs. 
6. Work with the IU Palliative Care Chair, Dr. Olubumni Okanlami, to improve regional Palliative Care. 
7. Enhance documentation on IPU patients to comply with Medicare regulations for justification of IPU stays and 

for billing purposes. 
8. NPs and physicians to begin billing for IPU Evaluation and Management of patient care.   

 
Goal B:  Position for Future Growth   

Category Status Goal 

Facilities  1. Design and begin construction on new Milton facility.  
2. Design and build new maintenance building. 
3. Complete Ernestine M. Raclin House and successfully relocate Roseland staff. 
4. Complete Mishawaka Campus landscaping and grounds projects.  

Global Partners 
in Care 

 1. Launch PCL training with APCA and Bluegrass Care Navigators. 
2. Establish a program to support existing unpartnered national associations in Sub-Saharan Africa. 
3. Complete process of re-domesticating GPIC from New York to Indiana.  

PCAU  1. Host biennial exchange visit. 
2. Devise a strategy for Road to Hope Fund’s long-term sustainability. 
3. Revise Road to Hope Fund website. 
4. Help equip new PCAU leader with capacity building and sustainability resources in three areas: leadership 

training and support; fundraising and sustainability training/consultation; and, research development.  

Education 
 
 
 
 

 1. Develop branded recruiting materials to market the Vera Z. Dwyer Fellowship to area physicians.  
2. Develop a medical student internship program with IUSM-SB. 
3. Leverage the Leighton Foundation challenge grant for palliative care to support CHC’s palliative care priorities.  
4. Develop a marketing and community engagement plan to promote our professional and community education 

programs.  

PAGE - 69



Goals for Calendar Year 2020 
Updated 02/06/20 

 

Page - 4 

Category Status Goal 
5. Create a focused marketing program to more effectively promote IU Talk to area residency programs. 
6. Design and launch Honoring Choices Indiana – North Central website.  

Goal C:  Maintain Economic Strength 

Category Status Goal 

Fund Raising and 
Stewardship 

 1. Kamm Society Rollout.  
2. Complete development and begin implementation of a post-campaign fundraising plan.  
3. Pursue HC Foundation of LaPorte County opportunities.   
4. Complete Milton Adult Day Care fundraising initiative. 
5. Hire Annual Giving Coordinator.  
6. Hire Grant Writer. 
7. Establish a CHC/HF online store with items available for pickup at Mishawaka Campus Main Building.  

Goal D:  Continue Building Brand Identification 

Category Status Goal 

HF 
Communications 

 1. Complete Hospice Foundation branding documents.  
2. Develop revised social media strategy.  
3. Develop a comprehensive PR and communications plan for HF. 
4. Streamline mailing list management processes and clearly define roles and responsibilities.   

CHC Marketing   1. Create collateral material for the Pediatric Palliative Care program.  
2. Create new commercials for broadcast, digital, and radio. 
3. Update Milton Adult Day Services website with branding of other CHC websites.  
4. Create virtual tours of Esther’s House and Raclin House.   
5. Create promotional and marketing materials for Private Pay Room and Board in the IPUs.  
6. Explore ways to promote our Center for Palliative Care.  

 

PAGE - 70



PAGE - 71



PAGE - 72



PAGE - 73



PAGE - 74



PAGE - 75



PAGE - 76



PAGE - 77



PAGE - 78



PAGE - 79



PAGE - 80



PAGE - 81



PAGE - 82



PAGE - 83



PAGE - 84



PAGE - 85



PAGE - 86



PAGE - 87



PAGE - 88



PAGE - 89



PAGE - 90



PAGE - 91



PAGE - 92



PAGE - 93



PAGE - 94



PAGE - 95



PAGE - 96



PAGE - 97



PAGE - 98



PAGE - 99



PAGE - 100




